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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bf#%&5#L &

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY AFMBRE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HKS million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
BEBTL BEBT BEBTL BEBTL BEET
Revenue - Continuing EEE-REXD
operations
Restaurant, food and B REKEE 287 348 424 475 517
hotel
Property investment wERERER 37 47 267 85 96
and development
324 395 691 560 613
Profit Attributable to BARIERA
Owners of the Parent FE 1t a F 56 337 229 173 400
Basic Earnings BREAREM (L)
per Share (cents) 7.60 4518 21.62 15.13 34.93
Net Assets BEFHE 1,041 1,403 2,830 2,999 3,293
Total Assets BEE 1,807 2,338 4,241 4,554 5,107

Analysis of Revenue -

Continuing Operations

BREDIN — FEXHK

Analysis of Profit
Attributable to Shareholders
% BR PE 4 & 5 A
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A= & #}
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE e

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
to you the Annual Report of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings
Limited for the financial year ended 31 March 2010.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group's turnover
was HK$613,180,000 (2009: HK$560,291,000), increased
by 9% from last year. The Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders was HK$399,695,000 (2009: HK$173,127,000),
significantly increased by 1.3 times from last year. The main
reason for the significant increase in profit was the record
of HK$330 million profit arose from the listing of a then
associate company, China South City Holdings Limited in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Upon listing of China South
City, the Group recorded the difference between its share
of China South City’s net asset value on its listing date and
the book carrying value as profit. In addition to China South
City, core operating businesses of the Group also achieved
satisfactory growth in turnover and profit.

DIVIDEND

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK2 cents per share for the year ended 31 March
2010.

AANERREZEGRERAZTLKRMR
RREZEREEBRE_ZT-—ZTF=A
ST HLEMBFEENFR-

E 3

BHE-_ZT-THE=-A=1+—HILEE"
NEEE %5 5613,180,0008 7T (= F
T NEF 560,291,000 7T ) - EEFEMN
9% ° f% 3 FE 1 /@ ) /399,695,000 T
(ZZTEZEREF 173,127,000 7T) * th =
B R URIE N3R5 o A% 3R FE (i ) F 18 A0 AY
FTERREABE QR [FEEHIERERA
A RNERNEEBEX S LT EEEFE
ZARMRE - EETEAREEEFE
AMRES SR KRB R 433187870 - I [ 2R
Wl EEFRNETEERLSERNLG
MRS IR ABIL 1T o

Bz 2

EEgRENBE_ZT—ZTF=A
=T FEIRERARE SR -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

PROPERTY

The Group's associated company, China South City, was
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 September
2009. On the day of its listing, China South City ceased
to be an associated company of the Group as the Group's
shareholdings in the company reduced from 20% to 14.8%.
Since then, the Group’s holding in China South City was
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
as available-for-sale investments. According to HKAS 27,
28 and 39, the difference between the share of net asset
value of China South City on its listing date and the Group's
carrying value was recorded in the consolidated income
statement as profit. On the other hand, the difference
between market value of the Group’'s China South City
shares as at the end of the reporting period, amounting to
HK$1,200,105,000, and the Group's corresponding share
of net asset value of China South City on its listing date,
amounting to HK$1,157,497,000, was directly credited to
the consolidated statement of changes in equity as available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve. The corresponding
profit and reserve amount was HK$330,717,000 and
HK$42,608,000 respectively.

Excluding the profit arose from the listing of China South
City and share of profit from the then associated company
before its listing, operating profit from property business
for the year was HK$28,735,000 (2009: HK$12,429,000),
increased by 1.3 times. Turnover for the year was
HK$95,818,000 (2009: HK$85,186,000), increased by 12%.
Increase in turnover was mainly due to increase in property
sales while increase in profit was due to increase in property
sales and rental income as well as increase in property
revaluation surplus.

For the coming year, two lake view high rise residential
buildings of Grand Lake City in Yiyang city of Hunan
province with salable area of approximately 27,000 sg.m.
are under construction. Part of the residential units are
offered for sales in the market recently and the initial
response is satisfactory. The two buildings are scheduled to
be completed in 1st quarter of 2011. On the other hand, the
construction planning for the logistic and commercial project
in Lianyungang of Jiangsu province has been completed.
Construction of phase | logistic and wholesale centre of
approximately 56,000 sq.m. will be started in 3rd quarter of
2010 and will be completed in 2nd half of 2011. Sales of
part of the shops will start in 1st quarter of 2011. Together
with rental income from properties in Shenzhen, Hong Kong,
Panyu and Foshan as well as dividend income from China
South City, the property segment will continue to bring in
satisfactory profit to shareholders of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE e

Hotel, Restaurant and Food

During the year, the Group’s hotel, restaurant and food
business recorded turnover of HK$517,362,000 (2009:
HK$475,105,000), increased by 9% from last year.
Operating profit for the year was HK$74,059,000 (2009:
HK$50,971,000), increased significantly by 45% from last
year. Increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the sales
increase in food business and Carrianna Yiyang International
Hotel in Hunan province. Half of the growth in profit came
from food sales while hotel and restaurant business each
contributed a quarter of the profit growth.

During the year, the newly build food factory in Hainan
helped the expansion of food production capacity as well
as reduction in unit production cost and was the major
contributor to sales and profit increase for food business.
For hotel and restaurant business, the three quarters of
operation up to December 2009 was still affected by the
financial tsunami started from late 2008. Growth was slow
and even negative for some business units. Starting from
1st quarter of 2010, hotel and restaurant sales resumed
its higher growth rate in the past. Satisfactory growth
was recorded in the hotels in Yiyang and Foshan and the
restaurants in Shenzhen, Wuhan, Hong Kong and Beijing. In
addition, management worked hard in controlling cost which
resulted in a higher growth rate in profit than turnover.

For the coming year, riding on the continuous stable growth
of the China economy, hotel, restaurant and food division is
expected to continue its satisfactory growth trend in the past
years. With increasing sales for our food products, the Group
will build a new food factory in Kunming in order to further
increase production capacity and reduce unit production
cost. The group will also further promote the ‘Carrianna’
food brand and expand its sales network. Management
believe the ‘Carrianna’ food brand has great potential and
will contribute to the long term profit of the Group. On the
other hand, hotel business also achieved over 20% year on
year growth in room occupancy for the 2nd quarter of 2010.
Together with satisfactory sales in restaurants, outlook for
hotel, restaurant and food segment for 2011 is cautiously
optimistic.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my
appreciation to the Board of Directors, our management
team and staff for their support and dedication to the Group
and to our shareholders, customers, suppliers and other
business partners for their unfailing support.

Dr. Ma Kai Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 July 2010
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES EEN 24 I1E A BESFF

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Kai Cheung, rrp, s8s, 88s, aged 68, is the Chairman
and founder of the Group. Mr. Ma has more than 40 years’
experience in the garment distribution and manufacturing
business, over 20 and 10 years’ experience in the restaurant
business and property development respectively. He
is responsible for the strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is a committee member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He
is the President of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International
Association. Mr. Ma also serves as President and Standing
Committee of Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisations, Permanent Honorary President
of Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community
Organizations, Permanent Honorary President of Hong Kong
Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce Limited and President of
Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu Chow Public Association. Mr.
Ma is a brother of Mr. Ma Kai Yum.

MA Kai Yum, rnp, aged 59, is Vice Chairman and
Managing Director of the Group. He has been a Director of
the Group since 1984 and has over 30 years’ experience in
the garment business. Mr. Ma is responsible for the daily
operations and administration and, together with Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung, for the strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Ma is
a member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and also serves
as a Director of the Chinese Manufacturers Association of
Hong Kong, Vice President of Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu
Chow Public Association. Mr. Ma is a brother of Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung.

NG Yan Kwong, aged 49, is Executive Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group since
2000. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce of the
University of Newcastle in Australia and is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the CPA Australia. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ng was
the finance director of a US beverage company operating in
Mainland China. Mr. Ng has more than 10 years corporate
and financial management experience with multinational
consumer product companies in South East Asia and Greater
China region. He also has substantial working experience
in public accountancy practice with a major international
accounting firm.

PITES
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES EEN 24 I1E A BESFF

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

MA Hung Ming, John, rnp, 885, aged 43, has been the
Managing Director of Carrianna Holdings Limited since
26th April 2002. Mr. Ma joined the Group in 1990 and is
currently responsible for the Group’s property development
operations. He has extensive experience in the catering
industry, as well as property management and development.
Mr. Ma was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy
degree by Morrison University in 2004. Mr. Ma was the
Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year 2002.
He is a member of the Standing Committee of Shenzhen
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a Director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce Ltd. He is the son of Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung, the Chairman and an executive director of the
Company.

YUEN Wai Man, aged 50, is the general manager of the
Group’s Carrianna brand restaurants in the PRC. He has
been serving the Group since 1991. Mr. Yuen has about 30
years' experience in restaurant operations and the catering
industry.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LO Ming Chi, Charles, /», aged 60, joined the Group in
1991. Mr. Lo is a member of the CPA Australia and associate
member of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia.
Mr. Lo is an executive director and Chief Executive Officer
of Sewco International Holdings Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Hembly International
Holdings Limited and Cash Financial Services Group Limited.
He was Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Poly
Development Holdings Limited from 7 December 2000 to
19 November 2009. He was an independent non-executive
director of Artfield Group Limited from 16 September 1998
to 11 April, 2008, Cash Retail Management Group Limited
from 3 November 2003 to 16 November 2006 and Freeman
Corporation Limited from 23 September 2004 to 21 August
2006. He was an Executive Director of New Century Group
Hong Kong Limited from 29 March 1999 to 1 February
2009 and Sun Innovation Holdings Limited from 21 July
2009 to 1 March 2010. All of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has more than 20 years
of professional and business experience in financial and
investment services in Australia, Hong Kong and other Asian
countries.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 ¥k

RITESE ()

B8k 2+ weymes WEBRKR B
EE-FNA -+ ANBHEEEHEE
BRAFINESELIE BB EER
BREBK - MR —ANTFEMAREER -
ERRE WEEELRMEREFEAS
LENEHR NS —FHFLEERS
BATHEREBRFERRAERAEERN =
TENFEXEENREAZRREEE
Bt EAABN BT _FHIRE
ShRER CMRTRINTEREERES
FNEEeE - MEARTNTELNITE
EENEBLEZ T

REX RFES505% RN —NA—F AR
SEH REAEEEEFREBEPEE
BREE REEANBEBEERRRESR
BIOI=tF0N&R-

BIUAFMITESE

SHE «rm+ BHF60m BE—NN—
FMAARAEE - B ERBRMNAEESST
B A& & 8 MFinancial Services Institute
of AustralasiaZ & 8 - &t £ 25 m B
TRER AR ZHAITEERITHEH -
i 2EEMBERERER A LES
CRBBEEBR AR ZBILIENITE
E MR _ZTEEEF+_AELAE=Z
TRFE+— A+ B IR AR ISR
BRAER QR ZEIFERITHRER R
—ANANEAA+ABE-_ZTZTN\EN
At+—BHHHAKBSEEER AR 2B
EBTEERR -_SE=F+—H=
BE S F+—A+~BHHEAR
BIRIKIERBER ARG 2B IERITES
ER_—_ZEZEMEHLA-+=BE_ZZ
NENAZ+—HHHARLEZERAR
NE|ZBILIEATEE - R — NI NEF
“AZt+hHEZZEZAF_A—HH
MATtLEREEERAANITES
PR ZEENF+tA-+—HEz_Z—
ZF=-A—BHEARSSEAR QA
WITES -ZERRIZEBHFEIRNE BB S
RBHBERAR LM tERMN  BE K
Hu D MBERNPEEREEFEEERB
B TERNEENHELR -



DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES EEN 24 I1E A BESFF

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

LO Man Kit, Sam, aged 49, joined the Group in July 2004.
Mr. Lo is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant
of Messrs. C.C. Lee & Co.. He has over 20 years of extensive
experience in the areas of conveyancing, banking and
commercial law. He is also admitted as solicitor in England
and Singapore.

WONG See King, aged 49, joined the Group in August
2007. Mr. Wong is currently a Chief Financial Officer of
HAGER Asia Limited, a subsidiary of the HAGER Group which
is a US market leader of building hardware products and is
engaging in a joint venture in the People’s Republic of China
("China”) to manufacture mainly hinge hardware products.
Mr. Wong had also worked as financial and business
executive in various Australian, UK and US multi-national
companies. He has over 15 years’ of working experience
in the corporate finance, building hardware, FMCG
manufacturing and distribution business in Hong Kong and
China and property development business in Australia. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Macquarie
University (Australia) and is a member of the Australian
Society of CPAs.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MA Hung Man, Raymond, aged 34, is the Vice President
of China East International Materials City. Mr. Ma graduated
from the University of California, Davis with a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Civil Engineering and he holds a
Professional Engineer license in Civil Engineering in USA.
He has substantial experience in structural engineering,
construction management and property development. He is
the son of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung.

YAU So Kan, aged 39, is General Manager of the
Carrianna Hotel in Foshan, PRC. She has been serving
the Group since 2004. Ms. Yau has formed an effective
management team in hotel management since the Company
took over the management of Carrianna Hotel. Ms. Yau
has about 10 years' experience in hotel management and
operation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) which became effective on 1 January 2005. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis a
quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles
and practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Company has complied
with the Code throughout the accounting period covered by
this report, except for deviation in respect of the separation
of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for securities transactions by Directors of the Company.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard under the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
currently comprises eight Directors and its composition is as
follows:

Executive Directors

Ma Kai Cheung (Chairman)

Ma Kai Yum (Vice Chairman)

Ng Yan Kwong

Ma Hung Ming, John (appointed on 25 May 2009)

Yuen Wai Man (appointed on 25 May 2009)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Lo Man Kit, Sam
Wong See King

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the "Director and Senior Management’'s Biographies” on
pages 9 to 11 of this report.

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience
which can meet the requirements of the business of the
Company.

Responsibility of Directors

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of
leadership, development of sound business strategies,
availability of adequate capital and managerial resources
to implement the business strategies adopted, adequacy of
systems of financial and internal controls and conduct of
business in conformity with applicable laws and regulations.
All Directors have made full and active contribution to the
affairs of the Board and the Board has always acted in the
best interests of the Group.

The Executive Directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities with regard
to key corporate strategy and policy and contractual
commitments. Management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the business.

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. The Company has adopted the generally
accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong in preparing
the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies
have been adopted and applied consistently, and reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates have been made. The
publication of the financial statements of the Group is also in
a timely manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibility of Directors (continued)

The Board has reviewed the financial projections of
the Group and the Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Board Meetings

During the year, the Board met regularly and held seven
meetings. The attendance record, on a named basis, at these
meetings is set out in the table on page 20 of this report.

Regular board meetings are scheduled in advance
to facilitate all directors’ attendance. Regular board
meetings are scheduled to be held four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. At least 14 days’ notice
of a board meeting is given to all directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. If potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or a director arises, the matter is discussed
in a physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by
written resolution. The directors attend meetings in persons
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Board papers are circulated approximately three days before
the board meetings to enable the directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised. The Company Secretary
assists the chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary shall attend all
regular board meetings to advise on corporate governance,
statutory compliance, accounting and financial matters when
necessary. Directors shall have full access to information on
the Group and are able to obtain independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary by the directors. The
Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records
of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all board
meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

Each newly-appointed director will be provided with a
package of orientation materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules, related
ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong
Kong. Updates are provided to directors when necessary to
ensure that directors are aware of the latest changes in the
commercial and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its business.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has not appointed an
individual to the post of chief executive officer. The roles of
the chief executive officer have been performed collectively
by all the executive directors, including the chairman, of the
Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows
contributions from all executive directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company’s
policies and strategies.

Going forward, the Board will periodically review the
effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing
an individual to becoming a chief executive officer when it
thinks appropriate.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board always acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure
that the Board works effectively and fully discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. All directors have been consulted
about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda.
With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at any board meeting and have received
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors provide a wide range of
expertise and experience as well as checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of the Group and its shareholders.
Their participation in the board and committee meetings
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the
Group's strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. According
to Bye-law 102(A) of the Bye-laws of the Company,
director appointed to fill any casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting after
their appointment and shall be subject to re-election by the
shareholders of the Company. According to Bye-law 99 of
the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation (except
Chairman or Managing Director) and shall be eligible for re-
election at each annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has three independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. More
than one of the independent non-executive directors have
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Board
confirms that the Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his independence and considers that all the independent
non-executive directors are independent under the guidelines
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 1 April
2005 and currently comprises three independent non-
executive directors and its composition is as follows:

Lo Man Kit, Sam (Chairman)
Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Wong See King

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record, on a named basis, at this
meeting is set out in the table on page 20 of this report.

The objectives of the Remuneration Committee are to
establish and maintain an appropriate and competitive level
of remuneration to attract, retain and motivate directors
and key executives to run the Company successfully. The
Remuneration Committee also ensures that the remuneration
policies and systems of the Group support the Group’'s
objectives and strategies. The Committee is provided with
other resources enabling it to discharge its duties fully. A set
of written terms of reference, which described the authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee, was adopted by
the Board on 1 April 2005 and the contents of which are in
compliance with the code provisions of the Code.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(b) to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the board of the remuneration
of non-executive directors. The remuneration
committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(0)

to review and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair and
not excessive for the Company;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration and that, as
regards the remuneration of a non-executive director
who is a member of the Committee, his remuneration
should be determined by the other members of the
Committee; and

to advise shareholders of the Company on how to vote
with respect to any service contracts of directors that
require shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of
Listing Rules.

During the year 2010, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board on executive directors’
remuneration packages and terms of employment. The
Committee also formulated and evaluated the remuneration
policy and structure for the directors and senior management
of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not set up a nomination committee in
relation to the appointment of directors. The directors of the
Company are responsible for making recommendations to
the Board for consideration and approval on nominations,
appointment of directors and board succession, with a
view to appoint individuals to the Board with relevant
experience and capabilities so as to maintain and improve
the competitiveness of the Company. The Board formulates
the policy, reviews the size, structure and composition of the
Board, and assesses the independence of its independent
non-executive directors in accordance with the criteria
prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Code. The
appointment of new directors will be considered and
approved by the Board and all new directors are subject to
re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting in
the first year of their appointment pursuant to the Bye-laws
of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 1 April 1999
and currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by an independent non-executive
director. Its composition is as follow:—

Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman)
Lo Man Kit, Sam
Wong See King

A set of new written terms of reference, which described the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, was adopted
by the Board on 1 September 2004 and the contents of
which are in compliance with the Code Provisions and
Recommended Best Practices of the Code.

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and the
principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review
and supervision of the Group's financial reporting processes
and internal controls. The Committee is also provided with
other resources to enable it to discharge its duties fully.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings
and the external auditors were in attendance. The
attendance record, on a named basis, at these meetings is
set out in the table on page 20 of this report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company and Ernst & Young, the auditors of the
Company, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and has discussed auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters, including the review of the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2010.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the auditors of the
Group received approximately HK$2,520,000 for audit
service.

The auditors shall not take any non-auditing job to keep
its independence. The disclosure regarding the auditors’
remuneration was set out in the note 6 to the financial
statements.

Attendance records at the meetings of the Board of
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Directors, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee 2T EHE FHZEShEZXZES
held for the year ended 31 March 2010 are as follows:— SEILHFLHBEOT —
Remuneration
Board of Directors Committee Audit Committee
No. of No. of No. of
Name 1] Meetings Attendance | Meetings Attendance | Meetings Attendance
EFg FHZRE FHUERE
ERY HERH By HEXB SRRy HERE
Executive Directors BTESR
Ma Kai Cheung SNE 7 6 N/A N/A 2 N/A
Ma Kai Yum SN 7 6 N/A N/A 2 1%
Ng Yan Kwong REX 7 7 N/A 1 2 2"
Ma Hung Ming, John S5 7 2 N/A N/A 2 N/A
Yuen Wai Man REX 7 2 N/A N/A 2 N/A
Independent Non-Executive ~ BIFHTES
Directors
Lo Ming Chi, Charles SRR 7 3 1 1 2 2
Lo Man Kit, Sam B3 7 3 1 1 2 2
Wong See King BER 7 3 1 1 2 2
“N/A”: Not applicable “N/A” ;T E
*“- In attendance xSl EE
Notes: 1 Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Yuen Wai Man were MHEE: 1 RZZEZNFRAZTHB - 5%

appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 25 May
2009.

2 Mr. Yip Hing Chung resigned as a Non-Executive Director

and Audit Committee member of the Company on 28
August 2009.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships
with the shareholders of the Company, the Company has
established various channels to facilitate and enhance
communication:

(i) the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board;

(i) updated key information of the Group is available
on the Company’'s website at www.taksing.com.hk
to enable the shareholders of the Company and
the investor community to have timely access to
information about the Group; and

(iii) the Company’s website offers a communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and
investors.

The Chairman and the directors are available at annual
general meetings to answer questions raised by shareholders
of the Company or other interested parties.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for overseeing the operations
of all the businesses units within the Group. Suitable
candidates are appointed by the Board to join in the boards
of all subsidiaries and associates operating in key business
areas, to attend the board meetings and to oversee the
operations of such companies. The management of each
business area is accountable for these operation and
performance of the business under its area of responsibility.

The Board has conducted bi-annual reviews of internal
control system of the Group pursuant to the Codes and
considers that all the material internal controls in the Group
are adequate and effective during the year.
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Property

The Group's associated company, China South City, was
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 September
2009. On the day of its listing, China South City ceased
to be an associated company of the Group as the Group’s
shareholdings in the company reduced from 20% to 14.8%.
Since then, the Group’s holding in China South City was
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
as available-for-sale investments. According to HKAS 27,
28 and 39, the difference between the share of net asset
value of China South City on its listing date and the Group’s
carrying value was recorded in the consolidated income
statement as profit. On the other hand, the difference
between market value of the Group’'s China South City
shares on consolidated statement of financial position
date, amounting to HK$1,200,105,000, and the Group’s
corresponding share of net asset value of China South City
on its listing date, amounting to HK$1,157,497,000, was
directly credited to the consolidated statement of changes
in equity as available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve. The corresponding profit and reserve amount was
HK$330,717,000 and HK$42,608,000 respectively.

Excluding the profit arose from the listing of China South
City and share of profit from the then associated company
before its listing, operating profit from property business
for the year was HK$28,735,000 (2009: HK$12,429,000),
increased by 1.3 times. Turnover for the year was
HK$95,818,000 (2009: HK$85,186,000), increased by 12%.
Increase in turnover was mainly due to increase in property
sales while increase in profit was due to increase in property
sales and rental income as well as increase in property
revaluation surplus.
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For the coming year, two lake view high rise residential
buildings of Grand Lake City in Yiyang city of Hunan
province with salable area of approximately 27,000 sq.m.
are under construction. Part of the residential units are
offered for sales in the market recently and the initial
response is satisfactory. The two buildings are scheduled to
be completed in 1st quarter of 2011. On the other hand, the
construction planning for the logistic and commercial project
in Lianyungang of Jiangsu province has been completed.
Construction of phase | logistic and wholesale centre of
approximately 56,000 sq.m. will be started in 3rd quarter of
2010 and will be completed in 2nd half of 2011. Sales of
part of the shops will start in 1st quarter of 2011. Together
with rental income from properties in Shenzhen, Hong Kong,
Panyu and Foshan as well as dividend income from China
South City, the property segment will continue to bring in
satisfactory profit to shareholders of the Group.
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Property

S

Investment properties in
Shenzhen, Hong Kong, Panyu
and Foshan provide steady and
growing rental income for the
Group.
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ATIONS o

CHID

China South City Holdings Limited was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 30 September 2009.
RZZZNFNA=TH ZEEHERERAGDEEBERGAER LMo

Logistic and commercial
project in Lianyungang of
Jiangsu province will start
construction of phase | Logistic
and wholesale centre of
approximately 56,000 sg.m in
3rd quarter of 2010.
URIHEEZTETNBEDR
RLIE B BIE201060 8 =FF
WE) TR & #i4956,000°F 75 K
BB mRRME R S5 -
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Hotel, Restaurant and Food

During the year, the Group’s hotel, restaurant and food
business recorded turnover of HK$517,362,000 (2009:
HK$475,105,000), increased by 9% from last year.
Operating profit for the year was HK$74,059,000 (2009:
HK$50,971,000), increased significantly by 45% from last
year. Increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the sales
increase in food business and Carrianna Yiyang International
Hotel in Hunan province. Half of the growth in profit came
from food sales while hotel and restaurant business each
contributed a quarter of the profit growth.

During the year, the newly build food factory in Hainan
helped the expansion of food production capacity as well
as reduction in unit production cost and was the major
contributor to sales and profit increase for food business.
For hotel and restaurant business, the three quarters of
operation up to December 2009 was still affected by the
financial tsunami started from late 2008. Growth was slow
and even negative for some business units. Starting from
1st quarter of 2010, hotel and restaurant sales resumed
its higher growth rate in the past. Satisfactory growth
was recorded in the hotels in Yiyang and Foshan and the
restaurants in Shenzhen, Wuhan, Hong Kong and Beijing. In
addition, management worked hard in controlling cost which
resulted in a higher growth rate in profit than turnover.
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For the coming year, riding on the continuous stable growth
of the China economy, hotel, restaurant and food division is
expected to continue its satisfactory growth trend in the past
years. With increasing sales for our food products, the Group
will build a new food factory in Kunming in order to further
increase production capacity and reduce unit production
cost. The group will also further promote the ‘Carrianna’
food brand and expand its sales network. Management
believe the 'Carrianna’ food brand has great potential and
will contribute to the long term profit of the Group. On the
other hand, hotel business also achieved over 20% year on
year growth in room occupancy for the 2nd quarter of 2010.
Together with satisfactory sales in restaurants, outlook for
hotel, restaurant and food segment for 2011 is cautiously
optimistic.

BUSINESS REVIEW 375[0l A
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HOTEL, RESTAURANT AND FOOD
BIE - BEZ KRR m

Hotels in Yiyang and Foshan achieved 20% year on year growth in room occupancy for the 2nd quarter of 2010.

BERBILNEE T -—ZFE _FENEREAGHELEZFRBERBEB20% -

Yiyang Carrianna International Hotel
7 55 1 22 17 B PR
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Carriosnns
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Foshan Carrianna Hotel
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Starting from 1st quarter of 2010, satisfactory growth was recorded in the restaurants in Shenzhen, Wuhan,
Hong Kong and Beijing.
EAZZE—ZF R/ RE BELIERNBEASKGEEHNESEER -

Wuhan Carrianna Restaurant

BUE 2 HE R

Shenzhen Carrianna Friendship Square Restaurant
AYMEEIREES KB E

Food factory in Hainan
8 R

During the year, the newly build food factory in Hainan helped the expansion of food production capacity as
well as reduction in unit production cost and was the major contributor to sales and profit increase for food
business.

FRNUREENFTREBERSEELBELENAFTRRIFER <R M EEELMEGAEE M-
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s consolidated net assets
after deduction of minority interests was HK$3,062,248,000
(2009: HK$2,760,685,000) and consolidated net assets
after deduction of minority interests per share was HK$2.68
(2009: HK$2.41).

The Group's free cash and bank balances was
HK$113,378,000. Netting off cash deposits pledged for
borrowing, the Group’s net bank and other borrowings
was HK$676,547,000. Net bank and other borrowings
less free cash and bank balances was HK$563,169,000,
representing 18% (2009: 21%) of the Group’s consolidated
net assets after deduction of minority interests. The Group’s
borrowings are principally on a floating rate basis.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisition and disposal for the
year ended 31 March 2010.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FUTURE
COMMITMENT

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has
major contingent liabilities relating to guarantees given to
banks for mortgage loan facilities granted to purchasers
of properties of approximately HK$90,238,000 (2009:
HK$76,816,000). As at 31 March 2009, the Group has
contingent liabilities relating to guarantee given to a bank
in connection with facilities granted to an associate of
approximately HK$8,516,000. The relevant banking facilities
were released during the year ended 31 March 2010.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the
Group’'s property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development, properties
held for sale, time deposits, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and other receivable with a total
carrying value of approximately HK$1,515,962,000 (2009:
HK$1,610,487,000) were pledged to secure general banking,
trade finance and other facilities granted to the Group.
In addition, rental income generated in respect of certain
investment properties of the Group were assigned to bankers
to secure loan facilities granted to the Group.

On 11 July 2007, a 20%-owned associate of the Group,
China South City Group has issued US$125,000,000
secured convertible notes. In this regard, the Group, being
a shareholder of China South City Group, has entered into
a share charge agreement by pledging 2,040,000 shares of
China South City Group and granting certain indemnities.
Further details of the transaction were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 11 July 2007. The share
charge agreement was released and the indemnities were
cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2010.

EXPOSURE ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE
FLUCTUATIONS AND TREASURY POLICY

Major transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi. The Group has no significant
currency exposure.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEE g WEE

The directors herein present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise the
property investment and development, the operations of
hotel, restaurant and food businesses.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 52 to
191.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK2 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year,
payable to the shareholders on the register of members of
the Company on 30 August 2010. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
statement of financial position.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The table set out below summarises the published results,
assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated as appropriate. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEE#HE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(continued)

MEBHEE (&)

Year ended 31 March

ZEAZt+-HLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-BfF _—TTNF ZZEN\F Z—TTLF CZZTTSF
TET AL AT FET FET
RESULTS L4 |
REVENUE Wz
Continuing operations BEER 613,180 560,291 691,459 395,217 324,393
Discontinued operation ERFEEK - - 153,860 260,594 270,946
613,180 560,291 845,319 655,811 595,339
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRiRH 417,245 180,676 246,404 343,897 57,896
Attributable to: JE1S -
Owners of SRAEE A
the parent 399,695 173,127 228,910 336,670 56,130
Minority interests DY RE 17,550 7,549 17,494 7,227 1,766
417,245 180,676 246,404 343,897 57,896
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND RE ARR
MINORITY INTERESTS PHBREER
TOTAL ASSETS HEE 5,106,782 4,553,719 4,240,510 2,338,480 1,806,906
TOTAL LIABILITIES HER (1,813,605) (1,554,820) (1,410,731)  (935,979)  (765,788)
MINORITY INTERESTS PHEEER (230,929)  (238,214)  (245,916) (34,191) (25,014)
3,062,248 2,760,685 2,583,863 1,368,310 1,016,104
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 36 and 37
to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provision
of The Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to
HK$133,153,000, of which HK$22,882,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,275,015,000, may be distributed in the form of fully-
paid bonus shares.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities and pledge of
assets are set out in notes 41 and 44, respectively, to the
financial statements.
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Il

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS EZERR

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions — F R A% E £ 48 H220,0008 T (==

totalling HK$220,000 (2009: HK$1,903,000). TN 01,903,000 ) fEEEZRAE -

DIRECTORS EF

The directors of the Company during the year were: RABIRFEESFNT

Executive Directors: BMITES:

Ma Kai Cheung BhE

Ma Kai Yum SN/

Ng Yan Kwong RE¥K

Ma Hung Ming, John (appointed on 25 May 2009) S (R_ZEThFRA-+HA
BEE)

Yuen Wai Man (appointed on 25 May 2009) REX(RZZEZENFAAZ-THA
BEEE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIUFERTES:

Lo Ming Chi, Charles 25

Lo Man Kit, Sam B S

Wong See King =R

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,  1RIEA QBRI A RI4HEIEIMEIETE » 49
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles will retire by rotation and, being  F 4w ESR Lt AEHEERILHE
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming ~ EERIERITHRERF RS HREE
annual general meeting. £

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company's Bye- IREARQFMNABMAIEINFET  EX
laws, Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam will retire by rotation and, being £t L SHESR - EL4E EEHEERIFE
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming ~ EERIERITHRERF RS L xiEE
annual general meeting. £
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung had entered into a service contract
with the Company. The contract has no fixed terms of
engagement and is subject to termination by either party
giving three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ng Yan Kwong had entered into a service contract
with the Company. The contract has no fixed terms of
engagement and is subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Bye-laws and termination by
either party giving three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ma Kai Yum, Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Yuen Wai
Man had no service contract with the Company as at the end
of the reporting period.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
interests in the securities of the Group”, and in the share
option scheme disclosures in note 37 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Company’s directors, their respective spouse or minor
children to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or which (b) were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred therein; or which
(c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) under the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERFKENEGHD

RZBE-—ZEF=A=+—H AREIZE
ENEBITHRABRARBHNARRIE
= nm (EER (BHEERAEGE)
EXVER) - REER D REFFHEBAT
B NOAR - S EmA )R (BH M
B1&GI) EXVEBET7 D 88N FE8D B 2 4R
EHNERRBARBEMAERZMBERRA
A ([BFr]) (BHE (BHEAPEK
1) EEARBWAERER 2 EE MK
B) o b)RFERERN (EH LB
FEINHRRMEATHFEZERMA: (o)
RELHRAY 2 EHRRESETES
R ZBESTR ([BETRI]) ARTTH
SARRP Rz Emm T

Long positions in shares REHhZFE
(a) The Company (a) x4 H
Underlying Percentage
Number of ordinary shares held shares of the
and nature of interest pursuant to Company's
Personal Family Other share options issued share
Name of director Capacity interests interests interests (note 1) Total capital
RERREZ HELH
RFELERRABERERNE HRRHHE ERITRSF
EEft4 5 BAER RE#ES RftER (M5E1) £ Btk
Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner, 220,124,172 9,300,000 259,129,025 10,000,000 498,553,197 43.58
ENE interest of spouse and (note 2) (note 3)
beneficiary of trust (MsE2) (M3)
ERBEA RBEER
FREXEA
Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner, 41,834,260 3,200,000 101,201,040 10,000,000 156,235,300 13.66
BN interest of spouse and (note4)  (notes 5 & 6)
beneficiary of trust (MizEa) (HzE576)
BERAAA REEER
ERXEA
Ng Yan Kwong Beneficial owner 11,768,000 - - - 11,768,000 1.03
REK EEBEEA
Ma Hung Ming, John Beneficial owner, 310,000 3,044,000 - 8,000,000 11,354,000 0.99
Btk interest of spouse (note 7)
Ealia \REBER (PEE7)
Lo Ming Chi, Charles Beneficial owner - - - 450,000 450,000 0.04

49E

EiEAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

(a) The Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) The underlying shares represent interests of options granted
to the Directors and senior executive under the Share Option
Scheme to acquire shares of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 37 to the financial statements under
the section headed “Share Option Scheme”.

(2)  The shares were owned by Cheung Lin Kiu, the spouse of Ma
Kai Cheung.

(3) Ma Kai Cheung and his family are the objects of a discretionary
trust which effectively owns the entire issued share capital of
Regent World Investments Limited (“Regent World”) and 70%
of the entire issued share capital of Bond Well Investments
Limited ("Bond Well"). At the balance sheet date, Regent World
owned 184,121,625 shares and Bond Well owned 75,007,400
shares of the Company.

(4)  The shares were owned by Kwok Kit Mei, the spouse of Ma Kai
Yum.

(5)  Ma Kai Yum and his family are the objects of a discretionary
trust which effectively owns the entire issued share capital
of Grand Wealth Investments Limited (“Grand Wealth”) and
Peaceful World Limited (“Peaceful World”). At the balance
sheet date, Grand Wealth owned 74,651,040 shares and
Peaceful World owned 19,050,000 shares of the Company.

(6)  Peaceful World owns the entire issued share capital of Real
Potential Limited (“Real Potential”). At the balance sheet
date, Real Potential owned 7,500,000 shares of the Company.
The interests of Real Potential in the Company are therefore
deemed to be the interests of Peaceful World in which Ma Kai
Yum is also deemed to have interests for the reason as stated in
note 5 above.

(7)  The shares were owned by Choi Ka Man, Carmen, the spouse
of Ma Hung Ming, John.
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DIRECTORS'

OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

(b)

Subsidiaries

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEE#HE

INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES

EERFKEMNEFHED ()

REmzire (&5)

(b) HEBLA

Percentage of
the subsidiary’s
issued share

Name of Number of  Type of  capital (ordinary
Name of subsidiary director Capacity shares held  shares shares)
(EHE LT
ERTRFEMIL
MELFRRR EEpS 51 FslkaBE  RHFR (#BRIF)
Carrianna Chiu Chow Ma Kai Yum Beneficiary of trust 15,000  Ordinary 1.5
Restaurant (T.S.T.)
Limited
EEBNEE SNR EREXEA T
(498)ERA
Ginza Development Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 15 Ordinary 2.5
Company Limited
TULZERAERA SNE ERHAA gl
Ginza Development Ma Kai Yum Beneficiary of trust 18 Ordinary 3
Company Limited
TBEERERAA SN FEREX@A R
Gartrend Development ~ Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 500,000  Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
REERARAA SNE ESEAA BERZE TEH
BB
Gartrend Development ~ Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 500,000  Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
REERARLA SR EREAA BRZE TER
BT
Tak Sing Alliance Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 9,000  Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
SNE EREAA BRER TER
B A
Tak Sing Alliance Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 1,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
SNR ESEAA BREE MER
BB
BEEEH (EK)BEZ  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 10
BERAF
REX EREAA

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED i A & 39
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES

OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

EERFKEMNEFHED ()

REmzie (5)

(b) MELE (E)

Percentage of

the subsidiary’s

issued share

Name of Number of  Type of  capital (ordinary
Name of subsidiary director Capacity shares held  shares shares)
EHMEAR
ERITRFENL
HELAREE ¢ 334 51 RERHBE BRGER (BiER)
BHEEFR M Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  NA 10
BARARF
REX ERBBA
LBEEFEHER Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  NA 10
BRARFE -
REX ExBEBA
TBEERERER Ma Hung Ming, John Beneficial owner NA  N/A 15
BRARA
Sk BERBEBA
REEEHER Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  NA 20
BARARF
REX ERBBA
REEEMER Ma Hung Ming, John Beneficial owner NA  NA 10
BRARFE -
568 ExBEBA
FYEEHFEERHRE  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner N/A  N/A 15
BRARA
REX ERBEAA
RECEPBEER Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  NA 12
BARARF
REX ERBBA
L REEFBEEER Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 25
BRARFE -
REX ExBEBA

In addition to the above, Ma Kai Cheung and Ma Kai Yum
have non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain
subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Group solely for
the purpose of complying with their minimum company
membership requirements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE 2 4=

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

All the interests stated above represent long positions.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of
the directors or chief executives of the Company, nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company, or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as detailed in note 45 to the financial statements, no
director had a beneficial interest in any material contract to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
"Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 10 October 2005
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements.

EERFKEMNEFHED ()
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=1Es

RE=E

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RERRMERT® (40)
The following share options were outstanding under the — RFR - RIFZTEIE N s R1T76 2B
Scheme during the year: BT
Number of share options
WRENE
Date of Exercise
At1  Granted Exercised Forfeited At 31 grant of Exercise price of At grant
April during during during March share period of share date of
2009 the year the year the year 2010 options* share options options**  options
HKS HKS
per share per share
»®
B ZE-%%
ZBEAE RER RER RER =R R fiEERE el RERE
mA—-H e e %% =1-8 BRERRH- HE  BEES BHZAH
HKS HKS
Executive Directors
BTES
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
BNEEE 25-10-2015
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
Mr. Ma Kai Yum 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
BNHREE 25-10-2015
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
EeE S 25-10-2015
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 130 1.30
17-12-2016
28,000,000 - - - 28,000,000
Independent
Non-Executive Director
BUKRTES
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 300,000 - - - 300,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
L i 25-10-2015
150,000 - - - 150,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
450,000 - - - 450,000
Other employees
HitER
150,000 - - - 150,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
700,000 - - - 700,000 24-8-2007 24-2-2008 to 2.15 2.15
23-8-2012
29,300,000 - - - 29,300,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes to reconciliation of share options outstanding during the year:

*

* *

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

RRERHEETE (&)

PR P B 2 B AR Y 5

* BREETEMNOEMEAREE BRAE
BEETEHNFGA -

R0 7T R R B AR SRR Rk AT
B A2 AR A M B B R o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2010, according to the register kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far
as was known to the Directors, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long positions in shares

FEBRR

R-E-ZEF=ZF=1—8 REAR

B (RELMEERD) E336KFEZLE
CMAMR ARBRESRHRAM TIAL
FAE (LFARAEFTHREIETRA
B)EARRA 2D LA HE s
KR WARIERE 75 R E 1R B XV
*B%Z"*B&%B"*Bf/ﬁtﬁ)}zﬁ%

RERZHR

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company’s issued

Name of shareholder Capacity Notes shares held share capital
BFAERTE HFELTH
FEEX 13 B F BERBA ERITRFISLE
East Asia International Trustees Trustee a 360,330,065 31.49
Limited EEA
Golden Yield Holdings Limited Interest in controlled b 259,129,025 22.65
corporations
b E/NCIE 3y
Wealthy Platform Limited Interest in controlled C 101,201,040 8.85
corporations
S Z/NCIE 2y
Regent World Investments Holding corporation b 184,121,625 16.09
Limited BERERAT
Bond Well Investments Limited Holding corporation b 75,007,400 6.56
HEERAR
Grand Wealth Investments Holding corporation C 74,651,040 6.52
Limited BERERAT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

Notes:

Save

East Asia International Trustees Limited (“EAIT") is the trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Cheung and his family are
the objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Golden Yield
Holdings Limited (”“Golden Yield”), EAIT was indirectly interested in
259,129,025 shares of the Company. EAIT is also the trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Yum and his family are the
objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wealthy Platform
Limited (“Wealthy Platform”), EAIT was indirectly interested in
101,201,040 shares in the Company. As at the balance sheet date,
EAIT was effectively interested in a total of 360,330,065 shares of the
Company.

Golden Yield owns the entire issued share capital of Regent World
and 70% of the entire issued share capital of Bond Well, was
indirectly interested in a total of 259,129,025 shares of the Company.
The total shares held by both Regent World and Bond Well are the
same block of shares as disclosed in “Other interests” of Mr. Ma
Kai Cheung under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in the
Securities of the Group” set out above.

Wealthy Platform owns the entire issued share capital of Grand
Wealth and Peaceful World and indirect owns the entire issued share
capital of Real Potential through Peaceful World, was indirectly
interested in 101,201,040 shares of the Company. The total shares
held by Grand Wealth, Peaceful World and Real Potential are the same
block of shares as disclosed in “Other interests” of Mr. Ma Kai Yum
under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in the Securities of the
Group” set out above.

as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are

not aware of any other persons who, as at 31 March 2010,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company in the register that was
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #

w

HES

FEBRX (&)

REmzie (5)

a. East Asia International Trustees Limited
(TEATD ABNEBEERERKERT &
AMKZH—B2EEENETA LE
i HE 2 &M E A FGolden Yield Holdings
Limited ([ Golden Yield J) MM #E #HEE A A
7]259,129,0250% 2 & 17 © B 5N+ EAIT IR [F] B
BENREERERKRIEAZ T AMMAZ
W—EDEEENETEA LEAEZEN
B A 7]Wealthy Platform Limited ([ Wealthy
Platform J ) i & % ¥ 5 A< ‘2 ®]101,201 040
2D REER EAT BERn#EEERR
#360,330,065/% & f% 17 ©

b.  Golden Yield##% & Regent World® & E 2
77R& 15 & Bond Well 70%E§§?ﬁﬂ§1"ﬁ‘ﬁf‘ﬁ
BB AR R A 259,129,025 2 & 17
Regent World &2 Bond Well& ,\T—rﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
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BEhEz [EtiER] PREBENR—HR

T/\ o
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS OF
THE LISTING RULES

Loan agreement with covenants relating to
specific performance obligation of the controlling
shareholders (Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13)

The agreement for the following loan to the Group
imposes specific performance obligations on the controlling
shareholders of the Company:

IhBAlZHREERE

RETERBED REERARER
TREZZE (F+=55%13.18(F)

THHBETAREEERZHHEREAR
ZEEBRRARERITAML:

Outstanding balance of Specific

banking facilities as at Final maturity of performance

31 March 2010 banking facilities obligations
(HK$'000)

R-ZS—ZEF=A=+—H BITRRTEBPA BEBITRE
KEZHRITHRERA
TET

56,960 21 April 2013 (Note)

—E-—=FWA=-+—H (M&E)

Note:

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, the Chairman and the controlling shareholder of
the Company, holds 43.58% shareholding interest in the Company, and
Mr. Ma Kai Yum, the managing director of the Company, holds 13.66%
shareholding interest in the Company, undertakes to maintain for a total of
at least 51% of the shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out
in note 45 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 March 2010.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEEHESE
ERLRIBKE
BREBEARRARFZAREHNRRES

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers and purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group's revenue and
purchases for the year respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group's staff consists of approximately 100 employees
in Hong Kong and approximately 2,200 employees outside
Hong Kong. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s
salary and bonus system.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, the directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard under the
Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 12
to 21.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

The audit committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices,
the Company has established its Remuneration Committee
in April 2005. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo Man Kit,
Sam (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles and Mr. Wong See
King. A set of written terms of reference, which described
the authority and duties of the remuneration committee, was
adopted by the Board on 1 April 2005.

The Remuneration Committee’s objectives are to establish
and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of
remuneration to attract, retain and motivate directors
and key executives to run the Company successfully. The
Remuneration Committee will ensure that the remuneration
policies and systems of the Group support the Group's
objective and strategies.

The remuneration details of directors during the year are set
out in note 8 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and still considers all of the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s consolidated net assets
after deduction of minority interests was HK$3,062,248,000
(2009: HK$2,760,685,000) and consolidated net assets
after deduction of minority interests per share was HK$2.68
(2009: HK$2.41).

The Group's free cash and bank balances was
HK$113,378,000. Netting off cash deposits pledged
for borrowing, the Group's net bank borrowings was
HK$676,547,000. Net bank borrowings less free cash and
bank balances was HK$563,169,000, representing 18%
(2009: 21%) of the Group’s consolidated net assets after
deduction of minority interests. The Group's borrowings are
principally on a floating rate basis.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to develop and grow while
maintaining its healthy financial position and solid business
foundation to create long-term shareholder value.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Ma Kai Yum
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 21 July 2010
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Elf ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

To the shareholders of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tak Sing
Alliance Holdings Limited set out on pages 52 to 191,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT J&

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

21 July 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #r& Uk

Year ended 31 March 2010 &2 - —ZFF=F=+—HIFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—ZF —ETNF
B 3% FTHET FET
REVENUE A 5 613,180 560,291
Cost of sales $HE AR (330,632) (302,760)
Gross profit E 7 282,548 257,531
Other income and gains = PN & 383,658 53,191
Selling and distribution expenses 73§ & $5 & B 5% (131,114) (121,975)
Administrative expenses THHAX (105,242) (107,862)
Other expenses, net HihFxZ F88 (10,404) (6,299)
Finance costs MBHAX 7 (31,092) (31,598)
Share of profits and losses of FEAG B = 2~ Blhm M K&
associates B8 48,163 143,096
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRRaas 6 436,517 186,084
Income tax expense FriS i H < 10 (19,272) (5,408)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR xXEERR 417,245 180,676
Attributable to: FEAf -
Owners of the parent HARIEEB A 11 399,695 173,127
Minority interests o 17,550 7,549
417,245 180,676
HK cents HK cents
Al B
EARNINGS PER SHARE BATRERRERA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhaERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT 13
Basic BN 34.93 15.13
Diluted e 34.45 14.96

Details of the dividend payable and proposed for the year are
disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME %4 2 mEE AdRkE

Year ended 31 March 2010 E—_Z—ZF=A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2—-25F —TENF
Bt 5 TFTHET FAT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR XEERF 417,245 180,676
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hth2m
INCOME/(LOSS) KA (BIR)
Change in fair value of an aJ ﬁgﬁﬁz
available-for-sale investment NREE 42,608 -
Exchange differences on " ﬁ%%ﬁ‘kz P 5,
translation of foreign =5
operations 4,070 6,925
Share of other comprehensive JEAE —RHBtE R RIH
income of an associate ftt 2 WA 34 18,392
Reclassification adjustment on HE—FNBARZ
disposal of a subsidiary E%ﬁ"*ﬁuﬂ@ 39(a) - (270)
Reclassification adjustment on —FEEA
deregistration of a subsidiary ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ\fﬁﬁz
B EAE 39(b) (943) -
Reclassification adjustment on RIELE—MH
deemed disposal of iR /NCT 4
an associate B D RAR (132,614) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FEERfE2E
INCOME/(LOSS) KA (BR)
FOR THE YEAR (86,845) 25,047
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FTEEHZEBA
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 330,400 205,723
Attributable to: FEAS -
Owners of the parent YNSIE ZS DN 312,339 197,128
Minority interests DR R 18,061 8,595
330,400 205,723

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X £ =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

Ra AR R

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—ZF —EENF
B 5 TFET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER & 14 429,592 438,657
Investment properties "wEYHE 15 1,238,598 1,211,768
Prepaid land lease payment TEfT + 130 & R IE 16 13,167 13,502
Goodwill kS 17 40,111 40,264
Other intangible assets HmmEREE 18 533,559 533,559
Interest in a jointly-controlled HHRREES EEER
entity 20 - -
Interests in associates R BN B ME 2 21 18,129 928,582
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 22 1,201,375 9,742
Financial assets at fair value ZRAFEIERR
through profit or loss RiERPREEZ
TREEE 23 489 7,347
Other receivable H b & YUK 24 11,626 =
Properties under development BERPYE 25 808,831 460,909
Deposits paid for purchases of BE T NHES
land 26 - 80,943
Pledged time deposits EEBTEHEFER 30 21,276 21,030
Total non-current assets ERBEEHLE 4,316,753 3,746,303
CURRENT ASSETS i By E
Properties under development BRPYIE 25 197,966 191,085
Properties held for sale FIEHEME 210,749 162,916
Inventories FE 27 41,017 45,434
Debtors, deposits and YRR - Ze &k
prepayments TE FRIE 28 204,476 275,789
Due from a director B —HES 29 1,291 —
Financial assets at fair value BAFEER
through profit or loss RERRPREZ
TR EE 23 8,270 -
Restricted cash BRHIRE 30 5,827 =
Pledged time deposits EEATHER 30 7,055 7,041
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER 30 113,378 125,151
Total current assets MEBEELE 790,029 807,416
CURRENT LIABILITIES pid BB
Trade creditors JT’&E\HE%,HE%K 31 (51,495) (38,662)
Sundry creditors, accruals and Hfh JETBR AR - FEET
deposits received &M &TEH&HZ;E (196,419) (185,106)
Due to directors BNES 45(c) (17.874) (1,767)
Due to minority shareholders R D EUR R 45(c) (9,436) (7,559)
Interest-bearing bank and Bt B 2 R1T &
other borrowings HE R 32 (393,726) (424,531)
Finance lease payables ENmEHRE 33 (245) (630)
Tax payable JEAS B IR (73,186) (117,394)
Total current liabilities mENBERE (742,381) (775,649)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RDEESRH 47,648 31,767
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REREREDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES
- page 55 — 26558 4,364,401 3,778,070
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=
=l

TS5 TR

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-FF —ETNF
B & FET FET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHERRDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES
— page 54 — 55548 4,364,401 3,778,070
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Due to a director B —RES 45(c) (63,151) (58,281)
Due to minority shareholders FEAS DR 45(c) (37,653) (31,453)
Interest-bearing bank and other K 8 ZR77 &
borrowings H i &% 32 (311,152) (299,438)
Finance lease payables & Bh & FH 4V 33 - (243)
Deferred income R FE U A 35 (261,788) =
Deposits received TEUAR K (5.647) =
Deferred tax R IER IR 34 (391,833) (389,756)
Total non-current liabilities RFEaERE (1,071,224) (779,171)
Net assets BEFE 3,293,177 2,998,899
EQUITY Ha
Equity attributable to B ARIRGOER A
owners of the parent JEAE HE =
Issued capital BEITRA 36 114,412 114,412
Reserves M 38(a) 2,924,954 2,634,832
Proposed final dividend BEAHE 12 22,882 11,441
3,062,248 2,760,685
Minority interests VYRR ER 230,929 238,214
Total equity B E 3,293,177 2,998,899
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong
Ba& REX
Director Director
E 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #Z&#EzS

Year ended 31 March 2010 &2 - —ZFF=F=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

%

CEES

BATRARAARE
Leasehold
land and
Share building Share Exchange Capital Proposed
Issued  premium revaluation option  Goodwill equalisation redemption Reserve Capital  Retained final Minority Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BRLH
B R#x  BAHZE ER 23 2 8
k% ARk EfER A WRER THER RORR fRe  REER  REEN  FWRR ot RRHE  #RsE
i3 T Tikn TiEn T T TiEn FEn T Tikn TEn Fin Tk TiEn T
At 1 April 2008 RZBENFMA-H 114,412 1,275,015 46,432 32,550 (86,2300 135414 316 5,995 36,554 1,000,523 288 258383 245916 2,829,779
Total comprehensive income RERSRERA
for the year - - - - - 24,001 - - - 173,127 - 197,128 8,595 205,723
Acquisition of minority interests B S BRRER - - - - - - - - = = = = (20) (20)
Contribution from minority SHREREFAES
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 5,682 5,682
Dividends paid to PRBRERRS
minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (21,959) (21,959)
Disposal of items of property, LENE BERZE
plant and equipment - - 2,778 - - - - - - - - 2,778 - 2,778
Transfer of items of property, anE BEREES
plant and equipment to FRENE
investment properties - - 6,850 - - - - - - - - 6,850 = 6,850
Share of an associate ME—EBEAR - - - 1317 - - - 118 - - - 1,435 = 1,435
Final 2008 dividend declared
- - - - - - - - - - (2882 (22882 - (283
Equity-settled share options
forfeited - - - (14,745) - - - - - 6,258 - (8,487) - (8,487)
Proposed final 2009 dividend
AARE 12 - - - - - - - - - (14 144 - - -
At 31 March 2009
114,412 1,275,015 56,060 19122 (86,2300 159,415 316 6,113 36,554 1,168,467 11441 2,760,685 238214 2,998,899
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e == N\ /g
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #r& itz E B3k
Year ended 31 March 2010 BE=Z—ZF=A=1+—HILtFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATRAHA A
Leasehold Available-
land and for-sale
Share building Share Exchange Capital investment Proposed
Issued  premium revaluation option  Goodwill equalisation redemption Reserve revaluation Capital  Retained final Minority Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARt i
Rf REF  BHRR ER 23 RAREN 2 8
-3 BRE  ERER fEH WRER THER RORR {1} B WIER REEF  ANER ot REHE  #RsE
i3 TEn T TiEn TEn T Tikn TiEn T T TiEn TEn T TiEn TiEn Fin
At 1 April 2009 RZZENE
mA-H 114412 1,275,015 56,060 19122 (86,230) 159,415 316 6,113 - 36,554 1,168,467 11441 2,760,685 238214 2,998,899
Total comprehensive RER
income for the year B2ERA - - - - - (93410 - - 42,608 (36554) 399,695 - 312339 18,061 330,400
Contribution from SURRER
minority shareholders IN € - - - - - - - - - - - - - 4742 4742
Dividends paid to SERRER
minority interests i) - - - - - - - - - - - - - (30,088  (30,088)
Share of an associate HE—HBE
Af - - - 659 - - - 6 - - - - 665 - 665
Release upon deemed  E{EHE—F]
disposal of an assoclate ~ BEAE - - - (13,504) - - - (5,538) - - 19,082 - - - -
Final 2009 dividend ER-FTNE
declared RERE 12 - - - = = = = = = = - (44 (11,441) - (441)
Proposed final BE-T-TE
2010 dividend KRS 12 = - - = = = = = = - Qe 22,882 - - -
At 31 March 2010
114412 1,275015% 56,060 6277*  (86,230)*  66,005* 316 581*  42,608* -* 1564322 22882 3062248 230929 3293177
3 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of & b5 RS $£2,924,954,000%8 7T (ZZZ 1L

HK$2,924,954,000 (2009: HK$2,634,832,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

£ :2,634,832,000% 70) B BIEE LA M 15
MRRTZ

RN A

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 4R8I &R

Year ended 31 March 2010 #Z2=—F—ZFF=fA=+—HIFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-FF —EENF
B & F#ET FAET
NET CASH FLOWS FROM REEEEBN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BRanA$H 40(a) 49,847 25,934
CASH FLOWS FROM BkEEDZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BankE
Bank interest received 2 HERTT I B 867 1,338
Interest received from other B 0 At W3k
receivable B 174 -
Purchases of items of property, BAYME BER
plant and equipment B (30,038) (148,707)
Acquisition of minority interests Y BE ’J\%(Hﬁ%ﬁéﬁé - (20)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EH B 39(a) - (1)
Additions to prepaid land lease &1 L i ‘Eiﬁllﬁ
payment #n - (13,956)
Purchase of available-for-sale BAATHEHERE
investments - (3,502)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - HE&
items of property, IR PTG RIE
plant and equipment 21 8,013
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYEDN
investment properties Fri5 318 - 8,910
Proceeds from disposal of ﬁ’%—ﬁmﬂ’éiﬁﬁ
available-for-sale investments FT 15 38 29,059 53,520
Proceeds from disposal of &% AEFTEEJ
financial assets at fair value FRBEPERE Y
through profit or loss T RVEEFTSRIE - 5,424
Purchase of financial assets BAERAFEYE
at fair value through MRBRFEEZ
profit or loss EREE (504) -
Purchase of other receivable i A CH b fE R (11,626) =
Advance to a director M—RBEEHR (1,289) =
Increase in pledged EERTEBRFRZ
time deposits 2N (216) (725)
Increase in restricted cash BRI & 2 18 (5.816) -
Increase in time deposits with Z|Hi B B = & A
original maturity of more than  FEHF Z# N
three months (496) =
Net advance to associates B ASNCIE-EN
FE - (1,663)
Net cash flows used in KEEFH 2
investing activities WEmHFE (19,864) (91,369)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #r&E

Year ended 31 March 2010 & Z - =

:E//Hﬁ#%%

—RFE=A=+—HBLFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-Z5F —EENF
Bt 53 THET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM RREEZ
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BeRE
New bank loans FTIGIRITE K 438,307 333,418
New other loans ¥Tig H M B 5K 11,940 -
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (455,276) (268,480)
Repayment of other loans BEHME R (1,786) -
Capital element of finance Bt & M AT & T
lease payments B & AR E 10 (628) (778)
Advance from minority D ER R B
shareholders 8,062 22,593
Contribution from minority VYRR ER
interests 4,742 -
Interest paid ERFE (34,605) (31,495)
Interest element of finance A& 47 & T
lease payments EoRAIBSR=iIgy) (45) (103)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEEES NG
financing activities A G ) #88 (29,289) 55,155
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) BaRBeSE
IN CASH AND FHEBW (D)
CASH EQUIVALENTS 694 (10,280)
Cash and cash equivalents FOZHRER
at beginning of year ReFEEAR 118,940 127,030
Effect of foreign exchange EXSHHNTE -
rate changes, net pEiE=C] 303 2,190
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  F#ZBR&R
AT END OF YEAR Re®EHE 119,937 118,940
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES HeRBesHE
OF CASH AND CASH HRERRZIWH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re LIR{TETT 113,378 124,820
Non-pledged time deposits with ~ EIHABE LR =18 B
original maturity of less than ZEEREBRER
three months when acquired - 331
Cash and cash equivalents FEEPBMRARA
as stated in the consolidated 2|z RERBEE
statement of financial position ZEIEH 30 113,378 125,151
Time deposits with original AR =1EH
maturity of less than three mERIER— &
months when acquired, RITEEZEH
pledged as security for 73K
general banking facilities 30 7,055 7,041
Non-pledged time deposits with ~ EIHiH X7 =18 A
original maturity of more than 2 KR E B
three months (496) -
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 32 - (13,252)
Cash and cash equivalents as MERERERA
stated in the consolidated FizHE Rk
statement of cash flows ReFEEEAB 119,937 118,940

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & B



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BA#& Ak R 3=

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—ZF —EENF
B 5E FERT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries TR B A A 19 1,570,914 1,537,959
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Other receivables and deposits HmmEWEREIZE 350 253
Due from associates & B 2 R m) BR 3R 159 159
Pledged time deposits EEBTEHEFER 30 41 41
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEAER 30 142 3,178
Total current assets MEEERE 692 3,631
CURRENT LIABILITIES mBAR
Sundry creditors and accruals HAth BT AR SR X FE AT
&R (1,238) (3,639)
Due to directors BNES 45(c) (15,780) (10,022)
Interest-bearing bank M E 2 RITER
borrowings 32 - (3,324)
Total current liabilities mBEEEE (17,018) (16,985)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mE A RRE (16,326) (13,354)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHERRDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,554,588 1,524,605
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAMR
Due to a director EN—UEE 45(c) (25,415) (12,751)
Interest-bearing bank Mt E 2 RITER
borrowings 32 - (5,305)
Total non-current liabilities EMBBERE (25,415) (18,056)
Net assets BEEFE 1,529,173 1,506,549
EQUITY g2
Issued capital BEITRA 36 114,412 114,412
Reserves 7% 38(b) 1,391,879 1,380,696
Proposed final dividend EEAHE 12 22,882 11,441
Total equity EmBE 1,529,173 1,506,549
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong
Ba&k REX
Director Director
EE s
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R <5 Bt =3

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged
in investment holding, property investment and
development, and the operations of hotel, restaurant
and food businesses.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties, and certain financial assets,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2010. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised gains and
losses resulting from intercompany transactions and
intercompany balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation in full.

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

LR EH

EREER—HREREFMK
YZEBRRAA - ARAFM#tE
BEAI Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and
net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries. An acquisition
of minority interests is accounted for using the parent
entity extension method whereby the difference
between the consideration and the book value of
the share of the net assets acquired is recognised as
goodwill.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle of the Group for the property
investment and development business is the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Due to the
nature of such business, the normal operating cycle
is longer than 12 months. The Group’s current assets
include assets (such as properties under development
and properties held for sale) are sold, consumed or
realised as part of the normal operating cycle for the
property investment and development business even
when they are not expected to be realised within 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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DISCLOSURES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R <5 Bt =3

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 2
Amendments

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKFRS 8
Amendment*

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 18
Amendment*

HKAS 23 (Revised)

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of HKFRSs
and HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial
Statements — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment —
Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures
— Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Amendment to HKFRS 8
Operating Segments —
Disclosure of information
about segment assets (early
adopted)

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Amendment to Appendix
to HKAS 18 Revenue —
Determining whether an
entity is acting as a principal
or as an agent

Borrowing Costs

31 March 2010 —ZE—F4F

RB=+—H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 32 and
HKAS 1
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HKAS 39
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Improvements to
HKFRSs (October
2008)**

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable
Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement — Embedded
Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

Transters of Assets from
Customers (adopted from 1
July 2009)

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

* Included in /mprovements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May

2009).

**  The Group adopted all the /mprovements to HKFRSs issued in
October 2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — Plan
to sell the controlling interest in a subsidiary, which is effective
from annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R <5 Bt =3

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than as further explained below regarding
the impact of the HKFRS 7 Amendments, HKFRS 8,
the HKFRS 8 Amendment and HKAS 1 (Revised), the
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant changes to the accounting policies applied in
these financial statements.

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures - Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional
disclosures about fair value measurement and
liquidity risk. Fair value measurements related
to items recorded at fair value are to be
disclosed by sources of inputs using a three-
level fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial
instruments recognised at fair value. In addition, a
reconciliation between the beginning and ending
balance is now required for level 3 fair value
measurements, as well as significant transfers
between levels in the fair value hierarchy. The
amendments also clarify the requirements for
liquidity risk disclosures with respect to derivative
transactions and assets used for liquidity
management. The fair value measurement
disclosures are presented in note 47 to the
financial statements while the revised liquidity
risk disclosures are presented in note 48 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) HKFRS 8 Operating Segments and

Amendment to HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments - Disclosure of information
about segment assets

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments, based
on information about the components of the entity
that is available to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of allocating resources to
the segments and assessing their performance. The
standard also requires the disclosure of information
about the products and services provided by the
segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group's
major customers. The Group concluded that the
operating segments determined in accordance with
HKFRS 8 are the same as the business segments
previously identified under HKAS 14. These
revised disclosures, including the related revised
comparative information, are shown in note 4 to
the financial statements.

The Group has early adopted in these financial
statements the Amendment to HKFRS 8 issued in
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 which clarifies that
segment assets need only to be reported when
those assets are included in measures that are used
by the chief operating decision maker.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R F =

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 @i BEREZEZEE (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of (c) HETRERE1IR (EIEET)

Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the
presentation and disclosures of financial
statements. The revised standard separates owner
and non-owner changes in equity. The statement
of changes in equity includes only details of
transactions with owners, with all non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single line. In
addition, this standard introduces the statement of
comprehensive income, with all items of income
and expense recognised in profit or loss, together
with all other items of recognised income and
expense recognised directly in equity, either in one
single statement, or in two linked statements. The
Group has elected to present two statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32
Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 4

First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards’

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time
Adopters?

Amendment to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards
— Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters?

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment
— Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Business Combinations’

Financial Instruments®

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements’

Amendment to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments.
Presentation — Classification
of Rights Issues’?

Amendment to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items’
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R 25 fff =+

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHMERMKRERDEFEBIME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HMEER (&)
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)- & (BRHME FE (BERMB
Amendments Int 14 Prepayments of mERE mEREZE
a Minimum Funding Z8¢g ) —REZE14
Requirement® —ZBE14R RREEZEX
EEH AITHBEET
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash B8 (BEEUYE mEGASLIEE
Assets to Owners' mERE BE
Z8®
—REENT5R
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial 54 (BEME UREATABERYE
Liabilities with Equity BERE =&
Instruments* ZE®)
—ZEF195%

Amendments to Amendments to HKFRS 5 BEEMBRE BAAVBHREENE
HKFRS 5 included Non-current Assets Held ZERIE55E /) SSRFFIEML B
in Improvements to for Sale and Discontinued CEIR2EG BEERBAIIZE
HKFRSs issued in Operations — Plan to sell RZZENE F—FEHER
October 2008 the controlling interest in a TABNEE  WELANZERE

subsidiary’ BMmEEN  mAEET
) B

HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of the BRERBEAE HE-BETEZELH
(Revised in Length of Lease Term in (RZEZT B 191 B F 7P
December 2009) respect of Hong Kong Land NETZH

Leases? &3T)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF& &

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 and Improvements
to HKFRSs 2070 which set out amendments to
a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view to
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording.
The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 while the
amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS
7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
although there are separate transitional provisions for
each standard or interpretation. The amendments to
HKFRS 3 and transition requirements for amendments
arising as a result of HKAS 27 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 while the
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 34
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for annual periods on
or after 1 January 2011.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application and is not yet in a position to conclude the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs on the Group's
results of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the
basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint venture’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with
the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA 7% &

31 March 2010 — & —

TF=A=t—A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is
subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s interest in a jointly-controlled entity
is stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and reserves of the jointly-controlled entity is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the
jointly-controlled entity are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's interest in the jointly-controlled entity,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 ¥k

P

24FEEIBRZEBE (8)

SELW(E)

(0 Hﬁﬁ%@7*1ﬁ$'§.ﬁﬂ)£$ﬁ
HEZESIGE QR HEE
&iﬁiﬁ&%ﬁﬁ A DR
20% & &N Al & A & Al &
HIIEARATEN %

(d) mEASERIFE35R kA
RERAEBEERLAHERE
BERAEMER20%IA TH
*E 'Iﬁ? %H%iﬂﬁfﬂ‘%

S 2 FEYIN

HFEEFEE
AFREHERBAXHARES 26
Al M B &SI XEH%

AEERAFRZEHNEROES
BASEREED S A EMG
BEFERETAREEERT
fR-AEBAAEARZEFHERBRNK
%&m%ﬁ&%ﬁ D RlET A AR B I
BREGEREHE AEERARE
ﬂE%Zﬁx%%FEZ* """"" A35 1L
@ M B R TR AN S B AT KR E
BERZEaLRIEH BERER
EREACERCEELRREE"
AZEFERDAEREARERA
EE u/u



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Where the Group’s equity interest in an associate is
diluted by virtue of the additional issue of shares by
such associate (i.e., a deemed disposal), any gain or
loss arising from the deemed disposal, including the
realisation of the attributable reserves, is dealt with in
the Group's consolidated income statement.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 3k & Bff 5%

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the
agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as an asset,
initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units), to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA’s Statement
of Standard Accounting Practice 30 “Business
Combinations” (“SSAP 30”) in 2001, goodwill arising
on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption
of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against
consolidated reserves and is not recognised in the
income statement when all or part of the business
to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when
a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates
becomes impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets, investment properties
and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
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(a)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by,
or is under common control with, the Group; (ii)
has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

the party is an associate;
the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 ¥k

SEMBEEAL:

(a)

EETEESER—RBXESH
EPM/\F'EﬁEz (VEHIARER @ 3k
52 Bl 7N & B 7 5l 2 R E )
u%ﬁ$$lm%\'175
AEEEBERNTZE N i)
B fth A H R HEA AN & B /15

#E

B RS
BRI RAREHER:

BT RAEEREF QAR
TEEEAER:

B RE77 ()3 (d)BATIEA T/
BERXBE:

B Th(d)k(e)BFTM A T B
B MgEs - B A KR
FlBIEEATE N IBER
EABRERZER

@A AAREES LB AN
BEERIEXEZNEFER
XmA e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Over the lease terms
Over the lease terms

Hotel properties
Leasehold land

Buildings 2.5% to 3%
Leasehold improvements 5% to 15%
Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% to 20%

Motor vehicles 20%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff 33

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as
at the date of acquisition. The useful life of intangible
asset is assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible asset with finite life is subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets represent the rights to purchase pre-
determined lots of land pursuant to legal binding
agreements. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortised to properties under
development as land costs in accordance with the
future acquisition patterns of these pre-determined lots
of land within the unexpired periods of the agreements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff 33

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in property, plant and equipment
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees
and other costs directly attributable to such properties
incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to properties held for sale.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 =T —ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank
balances, time deposits, other receivable, debtors and
deposits, amount due from a director, amounts due
from associates and quoted and unquoted financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. These net fair value changes do not include
any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in
other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
securities. Equity investments classified as available-for-
sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in
the income statement in other expenses and removed
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve. Interest and dividends earned are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the income statement as other income
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 =T —ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

24FEEIBRZEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial
assets whether the ability and intention to sell them in
the near term are still appropriate. When the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to do so significantly
changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect
to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to
maturity. The reclassification to the held-to-maturity
category is permitted only when the entity has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the
financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-
sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7% R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 =T —ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7% R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the income statement.
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31 March 2010 =T —ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7% R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39
are classified as loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade creditors,
sundry creditors, accruals and deposits received,
amounts due to directors and minority shareholders,
and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis;
and option pricing models or other valuation models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value on an individual property basis.
Cost includes all development expenditure, applicable
borrowing costs and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is estimated by the
directors by reference to the prevailing market price.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H
24T EERBEZCEE (8)

FEME

FEVEERANERZENMEZ
AE#RFEZBEECR -KAE
a%%ﬁﬁﬁ&%%ﬁﬁZ?EA
A BHZEERAREME R
R-AEHFEABESRRER
Z B f&E -

BeRie®ERE

?jﬁ%ﬁ?/ﬁ\fﬁﬂiumﬁ—rﬁﬁﬁ =3 iﬁ%&ﬁ
EEBEEEFERES LEHEXK
N 52 HA = 27 3 i BT LA BE B 5 3K
EMBE RS MZxEREHK
XEEE CRERR X ARE
HeHREBER (—RAEREBAR=
B AAEIE) B ERRNEIER 2 R
TEX MARFAEEREERZ
B -

MM BRAERME R MREeFH
BEABREIAERE 2 FERE R
RITRE (BREREHEFNR) -

i

AeEEEmEENEREEOX
TE S HEMT) Al BB B RFBEN T
BRABITEBAET GEEHNEE
TR Er AT RRERBE-

?E?EEEEE’J%‘E EKH—I Eﬁﬁwum
BEIERERSHARUETEL
FrBEMEF RKAXNRE FE
R T E £ BV RRIRE R N BER TS
FAARAEMBRE TREKA] A -

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E pX & 91



92

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff 33

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 ¥k

24X BEHBRZBE (A)
P8R

M BRI MELERE -5
RB@AIER BB ZAFEHRR
BRIMERSEMEEPW AR TR
FER AR

AREZRBEFEZANHHBAEE
REBEDRERRENERKE R
A BERZBER (RBE) @ &5 R
AEERELECBHFRER TR
BB BI - T8 5 B M 55 1 R U [ =X
[F) Bt 765 M BB S 5 2 TRERAT E o

EEBANBEERNRERR
BENBBIHBGERLERER
BHRcEFECRZABEERZ
LR

ERRBERMEEZRGGER R
EEFRIRAE - A NERBFISN

e MHMETEHRBRABDHEEENL
RAFEWEEHIH 2 EEN
BEZMSHERIMESL AR
REFHATFES RN K-

s A BB IE E AR

e HEMNBRAR BMEARRE
ERAEBERECERRER
ZEME AHEREZERD
Z R EAREG R EEERR
A AR G KAl g T RER O &
BRI



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an asset, the
fair value is credited to a deferred income account and
is released to the income statement on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) income from the restaurant and food businesses,
at the point of sale to customers;

(c) income from the sale of completed properties, on
the exchange of legally binding unconditional sales
contracts;

(d) rental income, in the period in which the
properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms;

(e) hotel and other service income, in the period in
which such services are rendered; and

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 37 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-
settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in central pension schemes (the “CP Schemes”)
operated by respective local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their covered payroll to the CP Schemes
to fund their benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the CP Schemes is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the CP Schemes.
Contributions under the CP Schemes are charged
to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CP Schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum
of association and bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 ¥k

24FEERIBRZEBE (8)

BB

EERBIARPREBRI BN
ROBABER T2REBBEMNDER
BYNR BEZFREXNBRA
T ERRHE - ML F R E ?éHx
RHENREIR REKRESSHER
R/R—HAE-

BN A B AE A AR N4 I A R AR
BREFTRTHBRE &P HBRE
AIRZEZZIREIR At FHRE
ERRMERENSERREE-

S

ZEPMBERETIAKRRG 2 EE
EREEBIRE - AEEZEE
m#mﬁ$%zm%§%’ﬁﬁ
UM HRE ZEE TIAD
%+i.%%%%$$ﬁlw
BERXRGB 2 EE 2 EXR
CEk e R E B RAINEETE
Z MEERBENEBRERRZ
Mt EKEREHHRE-TEEE
Bt AW E R - &%%Zfiﬁ$
HEZHEEERENRERARS

B [E R B E - L INEE 2 D ¥@#
EZHEKEE IR ATFEEEE
HIRERIBE -

XN K
_E?\
,U]]

[Y \—Fr i} ‘ﬂﬂn UYT
?ﬁ’@

ik



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, associates and jointly-controlled entity are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in a
separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff 33

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as
lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 ¥k

B Xt FI B & (& &t

AEERAEM GRS BREEE
EFHFEREBHHBA -FX-
BERBENRESH UREA
BERRE A AT EERER-A
m ERNELRREM[ETOIEE
- FBERAESEHFELR
AXFEEBEXRENEREERFD
ERAR-

F ER

RERASEEABRRERET &
BB EH AT A M8 R A&t
ERON MATHMBHHREHER
ZERTERK:

HEHRRE - FRBEBLHEA

AEEEREREMFEFAAFI LR
AYERN - AEEDROHELH
ZARFRETE - W HEE E AR AT A BA
REBRETABHEZILFEMERTR
ZERE R KB o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,am #&%W =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not
be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as investment property.

Classification between investment properties
and properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and
properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Judgement is made by management
in determining whether a property is designated as
an investment property or a property held for sale.
The Group considers its intention of holding the
properties at the early development stage of the related
properties. During the course of construction, the
related properties under construction are accounted
for as properties under development if the properties
are intended for sale after its completion, whereas, the
properties are accounted for as investment properties
under construction if the properties are intended to
be held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Upon completion of the properties, the properties held
for sale are transferred to completed properties held
for sale and are stated at cost, while the properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are
transferred to investment properties and are subject to
revaluation at each reporting date.
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31 March 2010 — & —

3.

TF=A=t—A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2010 was
HK$40,111,000 (2009: HK$40,264,000). More details
are given in note 17.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The Group engaged independent professionally
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
investment properties of the Group at the end of the
reporting period. The valuations were carried out as
follows:

In the valuation, the valuers considers information from
a variety of sources, including:

(a) direct comparison approach and made reference to
the recent transactions for similar premises in the
proximity;

(b) discounted cash flow analysis which discounts
the projected free cash flows generated from the
properties at an appropriate market rate of return
to arrive at the present values of the properties;
and

(c) a combination of the market and depreciated
replacement cost approach in assessing the land
portion of the properties and the buildings and
structures standing on the land respectively.

The carrying amount of investment properties of the
Group as at 31 March 2010 was HK$1,238,598,000
(2009: HK$1,211,768,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of intangible assets

The Group engaged independent professionally
qgualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
intangible assets of the Group at the date of acquisition
of a subsidiary. Such valuation was based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. The
carrying amount of intangible assets of the Group
as at 31 March 2010 was HK$533,559,000 (2009:
HK$533,559,000).

Corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to income taxes in the People
Republic of China (“PRC”). As a result of the fact
that certain matters relating to the income taxes have
not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective
estimate and judgement based on currently enacted tax
laws, regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision for income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact on the income tax and tax
provisions in the period in which the differences realise.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision
for LAT is based on management’'s best estimates
according to the understanding of the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by
the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its
LAT calculation and payments with the tax authorities
for certain of its property development projects. The
final outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded.
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows for the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2010 was
HK$7,457,000 (2009: HK$330,000). Further details are
contained in note 34 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Recognition and allocation of construction
cost on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to properties held for
sale upon completion. An apportionment of these
costs will be recognised in the income statement upon
the recognition of the sales of completed properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs
and other costs relating to the sale of the completed
properties, these costs are accrued by the Group based
on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded
as the cost of such phase. Costs that are common to
phases are allocated to individual phases based on the
estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any
increase or decrease in the development costs and other
costs would affect the profit or loss in future years.
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31 March 2010 — & —

4.

TF=A=t—A

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the restaurant, food and hotel segment is engaged
in restaurant and hotel operations and the
provision of food and beverage services;

(b) the property investment and development segment
comprises the development and sale of properties
and the leasing of commercial and residential
premises; and

(c) the "“others” segment comprises, principally,
investment holding, and other operations.

Management monitors the results of its operating
segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's
profit before tax except that bank interest income,
interest income from other receivable, finance costs
as well as corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8775 ¥ & fff =t
31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BERWEH (&)
(continued)
Property
Restaurant, investment
Year ended BE_ZT-EF food and and
31 March 2010 =A=+-H hotel development Others Total
il B MERE
BRREE RER Hith @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: SEBMBA
Sales to external customers HETIRER 517,362 95,818 - 613,180
Intersegment sales DA HEHE 1,717 5,717 - 7,434
620,614
Reconciliation: A
Elimination of intersegment 380 B2
sales HERE (7,434)
Total revenue B A 613,180
Segment results SBRE 74,059 408,594 19,627 502,280
Reconciliation: B
Bank interest income BITHIBHA 867
Interest income Hip R 2
from other receivable 2 WA 174
Corporate and unallocated Rl D 2 HEEBR
expenses rESH (35,712)
Finance costs FBRY (31,092)
Profit before tax BR 5% A 4 7 436,517
Other segment HuoBEH:
information:
Share of profits and FEERE N A
losses of associates il R BB - 48,163 - 48,163
Gain on deemed disposal of RIEELERE
an associate NI € - 330,717 - 330,717
Impairment of trade debtors FE R 2 BB 606 3,342 - 3,948
Recognition of prepaid land BREMN LT
lease payment HENE 378 - - 378
Depreciation e
- segment -nH 27,251 9,226 - 36,477
- unallocated v 1,497
37,974
Interests in associates I NG v - 17,894 235 18,129
Capital expenditure BAX
- segment -nH 23,302 6,432 - 29,734
- unallocated o 304
30,038*
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and @ BRI NYE - BEREZ
equipment. e

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E X &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff 33

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

4. BESHWEH (&)

Property
Restaurant, investment
Year ended BE-TTNF food and and
31 March 2009 =A=+—H hotel  development Others Total
Bg- MERE \
R KBS RER Hity @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL AT FHET
Segment revenue: SBEA
Sales to external customers HETHREP 475,105 85,186 - 560,291
Intersegment sales DA HE 666 3,472 - 4,138
564,429
Reconciliation: .
Elimination of intersegment i35 ’\45 A2 HER
sales (4,138)
Total revenue s A 560,291
Segment results PHES 50,971 155,525 37,495 243,991
Reconciliation: A
Elimination of intersegment HENBRZER
results (667)
Bank interest income |ITHEHA 1,338
Corporate and unallocated REEID 2 EEBR
expenses rETH (26,980)
Finance costs HBHRZ (31,598)
Profit before tax BR T A 4 A 186,084
Other segment HtiFEEH
information:
Share of profits and FE(EBEE N RlR M &
losses of associates BB - 143,096 - 143,096
Impairment of trade debtors Fﬂlﬁlﬁ AR 322 - - 322
Impairment of other receivables E b fE U F 2 (B 287 240 942 1,469
Reversal of impairment of BIRE SEZ
trade debtors R B B (758) - - (758)
Recognition of prepaid land BREMN L
lease payment HENE 94 = = 94
Depreciation e
- segment - A 23,807 11,121 37 34,965
- unallocated - Kol 1,541
36,506
Interests in associates kNG Ty - 928,073 509 928,582
Capital expenditure BAX
~ segment ~ D 154,408 7,899 - 162,307
- unallocated - ROk 356
162,663*
z Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and 3 BAME 6 ?Ef'iﬂ%%‘? B R AR

equipment and prepaid land lease payment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 ¥k

R FET+ # T E %



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

31 March 2010 —E—ZFF=/F=+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION BESMEH (B
(continued)
Geographical information i 15 3 E
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) HSVFRERZIA
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—TF _—_ZTTNF
FiExT FETT
Hong Kong BB 43,452 41,958
Mainland China e N 569,728 518,333
613,180 560,291

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

AR AERTIRERF T
Z b [ 1 5E

(b) ¥iBEE

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—EF :%Thi

Hong Kong BB 127,402 118,956
Mainland China R K BE 2,936,456 3,549,219
South America FIES - 287

The non-current asset information above is based
on the location of assets and excludes financial
instruments.

No customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Group's total revenue for the years ended 31 March
2009 and 2010.

3,063,858 3,668,462

LAFRBEEDIREEE
P2 ble m e (& B EE m R
) e

5

R-_B—BFR_ZBZNFUFE
WRBHE TFTEME-—FP ZIWA
FIXERAKEERAZED Z

-l
<P

_|_
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

5. REVENUE 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
gross restaurant and food business income and net
invoiced value of goods sold, net of relevant business
tax and allowances for trade discounts; income from
the rendering of services; proceeds from the sale
of properties; and gross rental income received and
receivable during the year.

W &

WaBIHERAKB 22X 15
FREERRMEFBRABBENRD
EEmERFERMEAEERLE
ST RERB WA HEY
FWa kBRI HE MABEK
JFE LA B 7K

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA :
Group
x5EE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-TF _—_TTANF
TExT FET
Income from the hotel, BIE BERRMER
restaurant and food WA
businesses 517,362 475,105
Gross rental income HE WAL 52,388 50,299
Proceeds from the sale of k= g
properties 43,430 34,887
613,180 560,291
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

31 March 2010 —ZZE—ZTF=A=+—H
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRIRMAF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after AEEBRBRAEFE MK, (5
charging/(crediting): A)
Group
TEH
2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—-EF _—ITTHF
Bt 5 THET FH&T
Cost of inventories sold and EEFERERERBE 2
services provided DN 330,632 302,760
Depreciation e 14 37,974 36,506
Recognition of prepaid land A T E FRIE 2 R
lease payment 16 378 94
Release of goodwill upon sale  HEDEREYWE Y
of developed properties* EESE 17 153 1,135
Lease payments under FHETHREFLEHEDY
operating leases for WEE:
land and buildings:
Minimum lease payments XEMEE 22,761 25,551
Contingent rents AT 1,684 -
24,445 25,551
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR % B 2,523 2,863
Employee benefit expense B B & A<
(excluding directors’ (T BEHEMEsZ
remuneration (note 8)): BEEME) -
Wages and salaries TERS® 86,774 73,608
Equity-settled share option NHEREER
expense HERRER 2 - (8,863)
Pension scheme RIRE T8I
contributions (defined (B 7 #HXEH &)
contribution scheme) 545 569
87,319 65,314

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E A £ 111



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —E—ZEF=HA=+—H
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBRAERN &)

AEBEBRBAMANEMER (5

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting): (continued) A) (&)
Group
TEH
2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—-EF _—_ITTHF
Bt 5 THET FAT
Foreign exchange differences, JEX =% FE
net 2,516 (515)
Impairment of trade debtors EWE 5 SR B 28 3,948 322
Reversal of impairment of FEUN & 5 OB B B
trade debtors 28 - (758)
Impairment of other receivables X i f& I FUR (B - 1,469
Fair value loss/(gain) on BERAVIRceREE
financial assets at fair value ZAFERE
through profit or loss, net (EBHR)  F8 (908) 207
Changes in fair value of KREMEATEESFHE
investment properties, net 15 (26,186) (6,983)
Gross rental income e WA BZE (52,388) (50,299)
Direct operating expenses "EUMEHSWAZ
(including repairs and BEELETH
maintenance) arising on (BREERRE)
rental-earning investment
properties 1,623 1,621
(50,765) (48,678)
Bank interest income |ITH B WA (867) (1,338)
Interest income from other H bl sk 2 FE A
receivable (174) -
Gain on disposal of available- HEAHEEREZ
for-sale investments W (20,587) (39,999)
Loss on disposal of items HEME BER
of property, plant and REEE
equipment 29 2,791
Write-off of items of property,  #i$5¥ % - B=E M & &
plant and equipment 2,354 -
Gain on disposal of HEREYHE 2 W=
investment properties - (365)
Gain on disposal of HE B AR
a subsidiary W g 39(a) - (271)
Gain on deregistration of — A B A~ R R
a subsidiary EER L iy 39(b) (943) -
Gain on deemed disposal of RAIEH & — A
an associate NI & (330,717) =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

31 March 2010 —ZZE—ZTF=A=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) FRIRARN (8)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after AEEBRBRABIE MK, (5

charging/(crediting): (continued) A) (&)

& Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary whose principal @ WiE—FENBAREE2HE A E
activity is property investment and development is released by XBRYMERERER RNEEFHEE
reference to the sale of the related developed properties. The ERYERED  LBIBEE RREREKE
amount was included in “Other expenses, net” on the face of ek [HaRE - 5 o
the consolidated income statement.

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$67,471,000 (2009: # EheREoBEAHEFERREHRRY
HK$54,977,000) classified under cost of inventories sold and X 267,471,000 L (Z T T NF -
services provided. 54,977,000 L) ©

FINANCE COSTS M RX

Group
*5EH
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-2F _ITTNF
FHT FAET
Interest in respect of: PSR
Bank loans, overdrafts and BARAFRNEHEEZ
other loans wholly RITER BEIZR
repayable within five years HiER 30,488 41,131
Bank loans not wholly T\;EEA£¢W SEER
repayable within five years ZHRITEN 4,117 —
Finance leases @Eﬁ?ﬁm’] 45 103
Total interest expense on FBEBBRRIEANE
financial liabilities not at fair AEZERAEZ
value through profit or loss FEF S E%E 34,650 41,234
Less: Finance costs capitalised & : &b F| 8 (3,558) (9,636)
31,092 31,598
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA 7% &

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

P

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION 8. EXil&
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BREEBBERIMBERAAIES
to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on ERA (T EmRAL) REERA
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing fRBIE161EEBEEETMES T
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
x&EME
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-2F _ITTNF
TFHETT FAET
Fees fidken 300 500
Other emoluments: H A B -
Salaries and allowances e KORR 7,143 5,856
Bonuses paid and payable* 2T R ERTTEAL* 12,513 7,430
Equity-settled share option expense AR (D 45 B R AR = - 376
Pension scheme contributions RN KRG 178 154
19,834 13,816
20,134 14,316
o Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to & RRARMITESAIER ZEARKS

bonus payments which are approved by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Group's current year profit
and individual performance.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7% R <5 Bt =3

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

31 March 2010 —ZE—F4F

B=+—H

8. EXdl® (&)

(a) BIAFRTES

AEEENBILEATESRE
W

Fees
HK$'000
ae
FH&ET

2010 —E—TF
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BT LE 100
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam B X A 100
Mr. Wong See King Vo 100
300
Fees
HK$°000
e
FHET

2009 —EBAF
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles B EE 100
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam B AL E 100
Mr. Wong See King =mRBLE 100
300
There were no other emoluments payable to the REWBENBILIIFERNITE

independent non-executive directors during the

year (2009: Nil).

EZHMME (ZTFNE:
&)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EFM& (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) BITEERIFMITESE
directors
Equity-
Bonuses settled Pension

Salaries and paid and  share option scheme Total

Fees  allowances payable expense contributions remuneration

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Btk  HURBEE Bt e
it FeRak EfEd  REEXH g Hewd
TERL TERL TERL TR TRL TAL

2010 2-2%
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung SNELE = 2,263 5,005 - 52 7,320
Mr. Ma Kai Yum SNicE - 1,729 5,005 - 52 6,786
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong RELEE - 1,691 2,503 - 50 4,244
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John* SRR - 645 - - 12 657
Mr. Yuen Wai Man* RENEE - 740 - - 12 752
- 7,068 12,513 - 178 19,759
Non-executive director: FurEs:
Mr. Yip Hing Chung** ERRREH - 75 - - - 75
- 7183 12,513 - 178 19,834
2009 k-1 B2
Executive directors: ENGEER
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung SNBEE - 2,26 29 - 5 5,286
Mr. Ma Kai Yum BNdtE - 1,729 291 - 5 4,753
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong REAEE - 1,691 1,486 - 50 321
- 5,682 7430 - 154 13,266
Non-executive directors: HHAES:
Mr. Zhang Huagiao® FILBEE 100 - - 376 - 476
M. Yip Hing Chung** ERRREE 100 174 - - - 774
200 5,856 7,430 376 154 14,016
# Resigned as a non-executive director on 30 September # RZZEZN\FLA=THE LI
2008. MITEER -
@ Appointed as executive directors on 25 May 20009. & RZZTZNFRA-+THAESR
ERITES -
**  Resigned as a non-executive director on 28 August 2009. > RZFETZAFNAZTNREFHE
EMITEEB -
There was no arrangement under which a director RERNRBEEABREABRES
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration MESREREEME -

during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES'
REMUNERATION

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year included four (2009: three) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration of the remaining one (2009: two)
non-director, highest paid employee for the year are as
follows:

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

9. hfiFME™mZRER

AEEZ AR ER BEON
—TETNF ZMESF HEFM
HBEINN EXHEE8 R FAR - A
B (ZFTTNF WMU)FES
MEEHEENMESFHBNT

Group

FKE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e-8F —TInF
Salaries and allowances e KER 82 1,497
Bonuses paid and payable B RERTEAL 619 822
701 2,319

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

FEENRSHEE ABIRFHE
EoMmamT:

Number of employees

RAAY
2010 2009
—B-BF _TINF
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000/ 7T £1,000,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t £ 1,500,000 7T - 1
1 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes
on profits assessable in Mainland China have been

10. RIS MBFAX

EBNEHIBEBEFERNENES
2 AhET R B FIE T E16.5%5T
HE(ZZETNFE:165%) - FHEK
PEERBEF ZHEIIREBEFEK

calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland P2 BITMEFTEBAE -
China.
Group
x5E
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-2F _—TTNF
FHET FAET
Group: £ 3
Current — Hong Kong BNH— & &
Charge for the year RNEZHIE M 360 -
Overprovision in prior years VA BT F [ B RE B R - (201)
Current — Mainland China BVER — A B K
cIT TERMBMH 16,328 13,520
LAT T IR E R 545 570
Overprovision in prior years VA Al 4 & R 58 B - (11,187)
Deferred tax (note 34) EER IR (P 5E34) 2,039 2,706
Total tax charge for the year RFEFBEHIE L 19,272 5,408
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

31 March 2010 —ZZE—ZTF=A=+—H
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FhiBMAX (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit 7S S H 9 BR 3 B D LA B A A AR
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in BEEMEAE UARARIRHEE
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries Z [t B A B 2 7 MMl b DA 2 s 5% v 11
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax iﬂzZﬁxﬁlﬁfdﬁ—ﬁ‘ SR 2 A
rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., EREHER (BRETCHE)HE
the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as xﬁl@% Z B R
follows:
Group
x50
2010 2009
—Z-Zf “TTNEF
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TERT TR
Profit before tax R 75 ATz 436,517 186,084
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory 1R&E# A E R X
tax rate 72,025 16.5 30,704 16.5
Higher tax rate of specific HEEEENREZ
provinces Bix
in Mainland China 5,217 1.2 2,799 1.5
Effect on opening deferred tax ~ HI¥)iE 7 A H &
of decrease in rate REzZE - - (59) -
Adjustments in respect of REFENEBHIE
current tax of previous #HE
periods - - (11,388) (6.1)
Profits and losses attributable ~ FE{REEZ AR AF],/
to associates (B8) (7,947) (1.8) (23,612) (12.7)
Income not subject to tax BAH 2 WA (68,575) (15.7) (8,167) (4.4)
Expenses not deductible for tax e[ {EFH B
Rz &R 14,712 3.3 8,461 45
LAT TiIEEMR (1,004) (0.2) (845) (0.4)
Tax losses utilised from previous B E)RBEEM 2
periods WEEE (460) (0.1) (722) (0.4)
Tax losses not recognised AERZHBER 5,304 1.2 8,237 4.4
Tax charge at the Group's TEEERRE
effective rate 19,272 4.4 5,408 2.9
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7% %k 25 Fff 23
31 March 2010 —ZZE—FF=/=+—H
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FhBMAX (&)
The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting JE 1k Bt & 2 A] B 18 4323,949,00078
to HK$23,949,000 (2009: HK$54,434,000) is included 7T (ZZEZNF54,434,0008 L) B
in “Share of profits and losses of associates” in the FRGERaR [EBEEEARR
consolidated income statement. MR EE ] -
11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF M. BRFIEAAELET
THE PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the HE_T-ZTF=HA=+—HLHF
parent for the year ended 31 March 2010 includes a B BRRHEAEGERE /ﬁnﬂ
profit of HK$34,065,000 (2009: HK$43,183,000) which 15 4 734,065,000 ¢ (=& jl
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the £ :43,183,000/ L) ' ER AR
Company (note 38(b)). FBRERARRRE ( WEIBS(b)) °
12. DIVIDEND 12. R
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-BF _—_TThF
THET FAT
Proposed final — HK2 cents EEA-SREER2EL
(2009: HK1 cent) per “ETAF - BRIUBW)
ordinary share 22,882 11,441
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to AFEREZEZERAREBAFEAA
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the IRERR BN B F%ﬂZHx%iﬂﬁj(;\L
forthcoming annual general meeting. Ao
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R 25 fff =+

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,144,122,328 (2009:
1,144,122,328) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
of all share options into ordinary shares.

13

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

- BAFRERERAAEGS
Bz & ¥

ERERBANDIBEAFES A
AEBRERE ARG RNRF
NEBITEBRZINEFEHH
1,144,122,328 (Z T L F :
1,144,122,3280% ) st & -

BREFERNIREBEAFEFAA
EBRBREEBARGENTE &
AHEEFTERA Z S BT
AR ESRERBRNFARA 2K
FELETEBREE  ARKREK
BERTESEBREEREESN
BITH AR -

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share REXRBFNEBESRANAEER
are based on: o
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
—Z—-ZF —ZTTNF
FHET FHET
Earnings 2%
Profit attributable to ordinary ARFTEEREARRRN 2
equity holders of the parent, BARIEBREEE A
used in the basic earnings JEAG 5 A
per share calculation 399,695 173,127
Number of shares
Biz 8B
2010 2009
—Z-Z5 —ETNF
Shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary AARGEERERRNZ
shares in issue during the year used in BEREITERRMETIHH
the basic earnings per share calculation 1,144,122,328 1,144,122,328
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEsvE
number of ordinary shares: —EmRETI9E
Share options e 16,023,990 13,384,920
1,160,146,318 1,157,507,248
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BERR W
Group xEMH
Furniture,
Hotel Land and Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor  Construction
properties buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&
5 RER RE
BENR THEET nERE B Rl Ef ERIE &8
THL AL T THL Thn T THL Tan
31 March 2010 —2-Z5ZA=+-H
At 31 March 2009 and RZZENE
at 1 April 2009: =ZA=t-BRk
RZEThEMA—R:
Cost or valuation BREAERMEE 312,303 77,609 121,415 21,209 70,412 16,193 - 619,141
Accumulated depreciation  ZFHHTEREE
and impairment (13,679) (18,350) (94,608) (3,655) (41,940) (8,252) - (180,484)
Net carrying amount FmFE 298,624 59,259 26,807 17,554 28,472 7,941 - 438,657
At 1 April 2009, net of RZZENFNA-H-
accumulated depreciation BB ETERAE
and impairment 298,624 59,259 26,807 17,554 28,472 7,941 - 438,657
Additions "E 13,282 1,094 4,875 2,695 4,277 1,769 2,046 30,038
Depreciation provided FRITERE (fitie)
during the year (note 6) (9,186) (2,312) (14,355) (1,668) (8,249) (2,204) - (37,974)
Disposals HE = = (10) (20) (20) = = (50)
Write-off ik = = (1,642) - (682) (30) - (2,354)
Exchange realignment EXRE 980 103 65 8 92 23 4 1,275
At31 March 2010, netof ~ RZT—-F%F
accumulated depreciation ERET=0"
and impairment BBk RAE RAE 303,700 58,144 15,740 18,569 23,890 7,499 2,050 429,592
At 31 March 2010: R-Z-Z%
EH=ET=0:
Cost or valuation BRAEREE 326,627 78,806 90,788 23,901 68,784 17,496 2,050 608,452
Accumulated depreciation 2 ERA(E
and impairment (22,927) (20,662) (75,048) (5,332) (44,894) (9,997) - (178,860)
Net carrying amount REFE 303,700 58,144 15,740 18,569 23,890 7,499 2,050 429,592

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 4 R




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬁvﬁ R S5 M
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31 March 2010 — & —Z 4 =+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BERERR (&)

(continued)

Group XxEMH
Furniture,
Hotel Land and Leasehold Plantand  fixtures and Motor  Construction
properties buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ffl
#f RBER KE
EEwE  tMEHT WREE B R L] ERIE an
Thr TR Th T T Th T T
31 March 2009 —¥ENAEZAZ+-H
At 1 April 2008: RZEENEMA—A:
Cost or valuation BREAERMEE 77,887 108,270 106,649 19,702 49,649 14,778 128,142 505,077
Accumulated depreciation Rt ERFIE
and impairment (6,317) (36,907) (81,248) (2,335) (33,813) (6,489) - (167,109)
Net carrying amount REE 71,570 71,363 25,401 17,367 15,836 8,289 128,142 337,968
At 1 April 2008, net of RZEENEMA—-A"
accumulated depreciation BB BHTERBE
and impairment 71,570 71,363 25,401 17,367 15,836 8,289 128,142 337,968
Additions AE - 2,510 18,219 1,287 23,455 1,535 101,701 148,707
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBAR
(note 39(a)) (Bi7E39(a)) = - - 1) (4) - - (5)
Depreciation provided ERHTERE (Fie)
during the year (note 6) (7,216) (2,300) (16,007) (1,262) (7,715) (2,006) - (36,506)
Disposals HE - (3,176) (1,348) (6) (3,470) (26) - (8,026)
Transfers =44 232,445 (9,821) - - - - (232,445) (9,821)
Exchange realignment ERAE 1,825 683 542 169 370 149 2,602 6,340
At31 March 2009, netof ~ RZZZhE
accumulated depreciation =R=t+-H"
and impairment BB 25 HERAE 298,624 59,259 26,807 17,554 28,472 7,941 - 438,657
At 31 March 2009: RZZENE
ZA=1-A8:
Cost or valuation REABREE 312,303 77,609 121,415 21,209 70,412 16,193 - 619,141
Accumulated depreciation 2 ERE(E
and impairment (13,679) (18,350) (94,608) (3,655) (41,940) (8,252) - (180,484)
Net carrying amount EmFE 298,624 59,259 26,807 17,554 28,472 7,941 - 438,657
TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #= &
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 0% BEREME (&)

124

(continued)

The net book value of the Group’s items of property,
plant and equipment held under finance leases
included in the total amount of motor vehicles at
31 March 2010, amounted to HK$882,000 (20009:
HK$1,360,000).

Certain of the Group's leasehold land and buildings
were revalued at 31 March 1995, by independent
professionally qualified valuers at an open market value
based on their existing use. Since 1995, no further
valuations of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
have been carried out, as the Group has relied upon the
exemption granted under the transitional provisions in
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, from the requirement to
carry out further revaluations of its property, plant and
equipment which were stated at valuation at that time.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, their carrying amounts would
have been approximately HK$16,190,000 (2009:
HK$16,730,000).
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

At 31 March 2010, certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment with a total carrying
value of approximately HK$338,113,000 (2009:
HK$107,161,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

The cost/valuation of the Group’s land and buildings
and hotel properties by geographical location and the

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

14. 9% -BERSME (&)

R-_E—ZTF=F=+—H K&
B 5 EERMEE4)338,113,000& T
:2?2?)1& 107,161,000/ 7T ) 2
ETYE BB REFEERR LA
B—RRIRITIEE (MizE44) -

AEERMENEEFHI D 2+
N AR T BB B W) 3 B AR AN B S fih

terms of the leases are as follows: BofmT:
Group
x5H
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—E5F :§$ﬂ¢
Medium term leasehold land and REBHE 2 TR
buildings situated in Hong Kong, BFP ALY
at 1995 valuation B—hANAFHE 23,991 23,991
Medium term leasehold land and R B R BE 2 £i#b &
buildings situated in Mainland BFHP AL BEKANE
China, at cost 54,815 53,618
Medium term hotel properties R R B K B 2 0B G W 5
situated in Mainland China, at cost FHAME A IR E 326,627 312,303
405,433 389,912

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

The Group’'s investment properties, of which
HK$1,100,343,000 (2009: HK$1,082,883,000) are
held under medium term leases and HK$138,255,000
(2009: HK$128,885,000) under long term leases, were
revalued on 31 March 2010 by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at open market value, based on their existing
use. The investment properties are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 42(a) to the financial
statements.

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s investment
properties with a value of HK$ 1,129,133,000 (2009:
HK$1,109,014,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties
are included on pages 192 to 194.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15.  BYR
Group
FEH
2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-2F _"_ITTNF
Bt & FET FET
Carrying amount at beginning  RFEV ZBREE
of year, at valuation RiGE 1,211,768 1,191,683
Net gain from fair value BRAFEARZFEN
adjustments 6 26,186 6,983
Transfer from owner-occupied B % =15 FA ¥ % 6= 5
properties - 16,671
Transfer from prepaid land lease 1= b T8 & 78 4 o5 #
payment 16 - 1,088
Disposals & - (8,545)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 3 B 644 3,888
Carrying amount at 31 March, WR=ZA=+—HZ
at valuation FREE  REE 1,238,598 1,211,768
Analysis by geographical =i Bl 5
location:
Hong Kong BB 87,217 79,370
Mainland China B K 1,151,381 1,132,398
1,238,598 1,211,768

B BEMGERMBETEENGRE
MERARBEZRREAGCEES
EAEE 2P HERHENEED
¥ R_ZT—ZTF=-A=+—HHW
ANFEMEDHIA1,100,343,00078 7T

—ZEZT A4 :1,082,883,000/ 7T)
138,255,000 T (ZEZ N &F:
7#128,885,0008 L) - I EMHET)
RegHERTE=F #FHEEH
7 B 7 3R 45 BT 52 42(a) A ©

R-ZE—ZF=A=+—HERA
#1E1,129,133,0008 L (ZZEZ A
£ :1,109,014,000/8 7T) IR E W
X¥EEER EAXEEME—K
IRITIEE 2R (MizE44) -

AEEZREYMHEFHBEEHIRE
19221948 °
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The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease
and is situated in Mainland China.

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=A=+—H
16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENT 16. At LA EREA
Group
x5EH
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-2F _"_ITTNF
FHT FAET
Carrying amount at beginning of year R FE ¥ EREE 13,880 1,088
Additions nNE - 13,956
Transfer to investment properties EREZREWE (ME15)

(note 15) - (1,088)
Recognised during the year (note 6) R FRER (H5E6) (378) (94)
Exchange realignment bE 5 T a4 18
Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—HEEE 13,546 13,880
Current portion included BV EA &6 17 B2 45 72 FE AR K~

in debtors, deposits and e RFBNREBEZA

prepayments (379) (378)
Non-current portion FE BN EA &R 17 13,167 13,502

HELHAFHBEORTAE LR F
Cip N

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

17. GOODWILL 17. 58
Group XEE
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 April 2008: R_ZETENFHA—R:
Cost DN 45,062
Accumulated impairment RETRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 41,399
Cost at 1 April 2008, RZEZNFHA-—BZHAE-
net of accumulated impairment AR ET R E 41,399
Release upon sale of developed properties FARHEDERERYWEREL
during the year (note 6)* (FF=E6) * (1,135)
At 31 March 2009 R_TEZENF=HA=+—H 40,264
At 31 March 2009: R_ZEZNF=A=+—8:
Cost DN 45,062
Accumulated release upon sale of HECREMEZRFTEL
developed properties (1,135)
Accumulated impairment ZEEHRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount AREDH(E 40,264
Cost at 1 April 2009, net of RZEZNFEA—BKA:
accumulated impairment and release R ETRE & BT 40,264
Release during the year upon sale of FAREHEDERMEREL
developed properties (note 6)* (HtsE6) * (153)
At 31 March 2010 R_ZE-—ZEF=A=+—H 40,111
At 31 March 2010: RZZE—ZTF=HA=+—8:
Cost DN 45,062
Accumulated release upon sale of HEEERVERTEL
developed properties (1,288)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 40,111
& Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary whose principal & WiE—HEBAREEsHE A E
activity is property investment and development is released by XBRYMERERER NEEEHBEE
reference to the sales of the related developed properties. ERYERELD-
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, the Group applied transitional provisions of
HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in respect of business
combinations which occurred prior to 2001, to remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated
reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries
prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, was
HK$86,230,000 as at 31 March 2009 and 2010. The
amount of goodwill was stated at its cost.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has
been allocated to the following cash-generating units,
which are reportable segments, for impairment testing:

e restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating unit;
and

e property investment and development cash-
generating unit.

Restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating
unit

The recoverable amount of the restaurant, food and
hotel cash-generating unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 12% (2009:
7%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 4% (2009: 4%)
which is the same as the long term average growth rate
of the industry.

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

17. 58 (&)

RS WMEM T2 450 RNEE
ERBBMBHRELRIFEIR2BE
RE ZEAAFEER _TT—
FRETNER SR EEEER
BiEEL -

RZEZNFR_FT—ZTF=HA
_—1— E' BA*?: E%iﬁ\]aﬁr
EKERFIRAGEARERR
WENBARAEEANEERER
86,230,000 &L i B K K A 5
/HEO

i 8 2 R {E A

HAXAHELZBECOERE
SELBM HERTERZ BN
YERLE A& -

s BER RmRBEERTEALAE
(VAR

e MERERNREZERRCELE

fiz

B RERBEHLELELN

B - RMMBEEREELEEMNZ
AREOESBEEZBESRERAS
Ttt/ﬁZﬂiiHHﬁM‘“iﬁ SRR ER

EEAFEZEREET -BHER
g%ﬁu BRAZITRERE12% (ZZ
TNFE: 7% ) RREBRESREER
BRFUERRA% (ZET N
4% ) HEHEZTEARBIEHEER
ZHEME -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Property investment and development cash-
generating unit

The recoverable amount of the property investment and
development cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering the
expected development project period approved by
senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 13% (2009: 8%).

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of
the cash-generating unit is as follows:

17. 58 (&)

BEZEEANR (F)

MWRRERBRASELEN

MERERBERBEELESEMN 2T
WEIHEEERESREEABR
EZTEHIBRIEE FHMKEEF
AR RERAtE2FRES
F-BEeREBBABRAZITBEEXRA
13% (ZEZENF:8%) °

mEZERE RS —RHESE
HBAMIT:

Restaurant, Property investment

food and hotel and development Total

AR RRREE PR -RERERE A
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—8-%% “TTHF Z$-BF “TTAF ZB-BF “TINF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TE#T THET TE#T TR TET THET

Carrying amount of HEREE

goodwill 8,721 8,721 31,390 31,543 40,111 40,264

Key assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the restaurant, food and hotel cash-
generating unit and the property investment and
development cash-generating unit for 31 March 2010
and 31 March 2009. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins
is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R 25 fff =+

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. Htt I\ EF&E
Group
F%E
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009, R_ZEZN\FHA—8"
1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010: —ETAF=RA=+—8"
“EZNFHA—HRK

—E—FTF=A=+—8:
Cost BZR 533,559
Accumulated impairment RETRAE -
Net carrying amount AR FE 533,559

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. 5B LAFIER
Company
F. 3/
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-2F _—ZTITNF
Fi#T FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ET B K AN E 61,990 61,990
Due from subsidiaries JiE U Bt BB A Bl kI8 1,824,568 1,707,384
Due to subsidiaries NI ENGIE S (310,176) (219,998)

1,576,382 1,549,376

Impairment? VERI=M (5,468) (11,417)

1,570,914 1,537,959

# An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from 2 BHRETHEARRBEFHEZE
subsidiaries with a total carrying amount of HK$15,571,000 BHREERATARE FHtETE
(2009: HK$21,520,000) because certain subsidiaries have WHBRARIREZAETDEEER
suffered losses over the years and the amounts are considered ZBfEA 15,571,000 B (=TT
as not recoverable. The movement in impairment of JLE 121,520,000 70 ) © 5 B &
HK$5,949,000 (2009: Nil) represented amount written off upon 5,949,000/ 7C (—TZTNF : &) KR
deregistration of certain subsidiaries during the year. B THE A REARFABUEEMATE -

The amounts due from/to the subsidiaries are JE W K2 FE AT B /B R B 2 BUIE A E K

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of o DEH S R E R KA o h L

repayment. The carrying amounts of these amounts due FEZEREHEEAEQFERS-

from/to subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.
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31 March 2010 —ZZE—ZTF=A=+—H
19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. GEARHS (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company FEWRBRRIMGFBRT:
are as follows:
Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and  Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
AL/ ERiTHE/ FOREERE
1] HRREE R FriGREE R EREx Bl IERH
2010 2009
—2-3F _ITNE
Carrianna Chinese Food Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$900,000 89 89 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
EEFARm (BE) BB TER 900,000% 7T RERR
ARAH
Carrianna Holdings Limited  Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares HK$25,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Mainland China and development
EEREEERAT Bk /mE AR LRk 25,000,000 T MERERER
Carrianna (Shenzhen) PRC/ Registered capital HK$80,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd.” Mainland China and property
development
E2H (R k& REAE &R 80,000,0007 72 REZRER
BRAFY NEER
Kunming Carrianna PRC/ Registered capital HK$12,000,000 60 60 Restaurant operations
Chaozhou Mainland China
Restaurant Ltd.”
EREEMANEE REAE &R 12,000,000 7T REEE
ARAR
Tak Sing Alliance Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$200 100 100 Property investment
Non-voting deferred HK$1,000,000 - -
shares
BB LAk 20087 nERE
ERZRETRN 1,000,000 7

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & B
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. 4MEATEE (&)

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
e/ BRT#E/ FLORIEERE
4 HREE R PR A gREx Bl FERE
2010 2009
—Z-2F -ITNF
Tak Sing (Panyu) Fashion ~ PRC/ Registered capital HK$51,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Company Limited" Mainland China
BNTERREERAAO PEARE HMEAR 51,000,000 7C e
EEH (L)X PRC/ Registered capital RMB14,700,000 100 100 Hotel and restaurant
BRAA Mainland China operations
EAR AMER AR %14,700,000 BERREEE
Amica Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100 100 Property investment
SEMEXERAA i Lk 10,000/ 7T ESE
Carrianna (BVI) Ltd* British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares US§1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
RERAHE/BE EER 1% RERK
Carrianna (Chiu Chow) Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$8,000,000 73 73 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Limited*
EEE (M) BR Bk BBk 8,000,000/ 7 RELE
BRAA¢
China East International Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 72 72 Investment holding
Materials City Limited
ZREARMANBRAE  EA TER 1,000,000 REZR
Crown Tech Investments Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$ 1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
EERABRAH i LER 127 REER
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31 March 2010 —ZZE—ZTF=A=+—H
19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. GEARMS (&)
Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
s/ BRT#E/ FLORIEERE
4 HMREE R PR A gREx Bl FERE
2010 2009
—Z-2F -ITNF
Earn Fame Group Limited*  British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares Uss1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
AEEERRAR EBRAME/BE BAR 1% RERRK
Elite Brave Development British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares Uss1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong
FEURERAA" RERAME/BE BER 1% RERK
Goldfield Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Property investment
REEXARAA BE EBR 2ET ESE
Huge Moral International  British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares Uss1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong
AEARERAR ZBRAME/BE BAR 1% REER
LEEHHRAERAA?  PRU Registered capital RMB3,600,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
Mainland China
HEAR AMER A& 3,600,0007 RELE
RECEMERERAAY PRC/ Registered capital RMB1,000,000 70 70 Restaurant operations
Mainland China
REARE it EA AR #1,000,0007 REMLE

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & B
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value

19. B AR (5)

Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
301 BERfTHE/ FLORIEERE
4 HREE R PR A gREx Bl FERE
2010 2009
—E-%3F -TTNE
REGEMEEER PRC/ Registered capital RMB3,000,000 53 53 Restaurant operations
BRAR Mainland China
REAE &R AR #3,000,0007 REEE
RIEEFEEERE  PRU Registered capital RMB20,000,000 75 75 Restaurant operations
ARAR Mainland China
AR AR ARE%20,000,0007 RELE
MIEEREHER PRC/ Registered capital RMB5,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
BRARAE Mainland China
REAE &R AR #5,000,0007 REEE
SEEERRRERARY PRU Registered capital RMB13,000,000 55 55 Food business
Mainland China
AR AR AR #13,000,0007 RmiE
aREEREREEEE  PRU Registered capital RMB100,000,000 80 80  Hotel operations
BRAR Mainland China
EARE AMEA AR 100,000,000 AERE
Carrianna (Hunan) PRC/ Registered capital RMB100,000,000 75 75 Property investment
Enterprise Co., Ltd. Mainland China and development
("Hunan Carrianna”)®
EEH (08 &% HEAE AEA AR%100,000,0007T MERARER

ERAA
("HEEEg) @
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31 March 2010 —ZZE—ZTF=A=+—H
19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. 5MBATRER (&)
Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage of

incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest

registration and Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities

301 BERfTHE/ FLORIEERE
4 HMREE R PR A gREx aal FERE

2010 2009
—E-%3F -TTNE
ERARKHIEEEE  PRU Registered capital US$29,980,000 1 72 Property investment
(BE#)ERARY  Mainland China and development

REAE &R 29,980,000 7T NERERER

IREERBEER PRC/ Registered capital RMB12,000,000 75 75 Restaurant operations
BRAAO Mainland China

AR HMER AR%12,000,0007 RELE
RIEEPRRERATY  PRU Registered capital RMB6,000,000 68 - Restaurant operations

Mainland China

HEAE A ER A& %6,000,0007C RELE
& Direct subsidiaries of the Company @ RABEEWE QA

**  55% of equity interest is directly attributable to the Company

& Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network

o Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

@ Sino-foreign joint venture companies

@ Domestic enterprises

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

> ARBEERF A5 %EE D
! M %K &R E ST AN B AT

GESS
0 HEBELE
©  hAARLE
o RELE

1&%%@5’7%@ A _E B 51) 09 Bt /8

RABEEFEAEERFEAN
XESARAEEEEFENTIE
KB AR AR H
B ARMER TR ERB
RITEK °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

20. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 20. (hEFAETERES
ENTITY
Group
KM
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-BF _—_TThF
THET FAET
Share of net assets BIEEEFE 1,790 1,790
Amount due to the JE {F £L [R] 4% I & 28 5K 18
jointly-controlled entity (612) (612)
Provision for impairment VERIZE L] (1,178) (1,178)
The balance with the jointly-controlled entity is [A] 12 ) B 88 /9 R AU M R A
unsecured, interest-free and is not repayable within one quﬂ B -BBARMERRERT—
year from the end of the reporting period. FAEE-
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows: HEZEHEREZFBOT :

Percentage of

Business Place of Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name structure registration interest power sharing activity
35 FEEARGESL
£ RERER i B 3! BrERE HHAE EERH
Chengdu Carrianna Corporate PRC 51 50 51 Dormant
Chaozhou
Restaurant Co., Ltd.
KEEER NG I TEex
NEE AR A
The investment in the jointly-controlled entity is RNARIEEERS LRZEGEE-

indirectly held by the Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R <5 Bt =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. (EREBELAFIHEG

Group

r 3 .|
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$000
—E-2F _—ZTITNF
TFHET FAET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 2,443 891,301
Due from associates JE W Bt & R A1 AR 3K 29,829 51,366
Due to associates JE T HsE & R RIBR 3K (3,515) (3,457)
28,757 939,210
Provision for impairment VERIZE L] (10,628) (10,628)
18,129 928,582
The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, B 7K 52 B Bt D AR FE U R ST R
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. HEREER THANERERETE
The carrying amounts of these amounts due from/to EEHR -EBEARNEK &

associates approximate to their fair values. NFIBZREEEL QN FEMBL -

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ f% & 139
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7%k

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Iff

P

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Particulars of

Percentage of
equity interest

issued Business Place of attributable Principal
Name shares held structure incorporation to the Group activities
2010 2009
RERE FREENRE
& FRERTRF R i 1 A3 Bl TEEH
—-%% “ITNE

China South City Holdings ~ Ordinary shares of Corporate Hong Kong 14.82* 20 Property development
Limited ("CSCHL") HK$0.01 each and management

and hotel services

ERFERERAA gl NG B NEBEREER
(rgmml) FiR0.01% T B & AR 7%

South China International Ordinary shares of Corporate Hong Kong 50 50  Property investment
Purchasing Exchange HK$1 each and development
Centre Limited? (unlisted)

ZHEERBER ST 0 TR R BE NERERER
BRA A FRUET

(3EE7)
& Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm 7 HEZKkETMEBEHATAIIOESS
of the Ernst & Young global network B e A%
* On 30 September 2009, CSCHL was listed on The Stock & E_ZETNFNA=TH E@EERE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and BEERXSMBRAR ([HRA]) E

as a result, the Group’s equity interest in CSCHL was diluted to
14.82%. Accordingly, CSCHL ceased to be an associate of the
Company since 30 September 2009 and its interest therein has
been accounted for as an available-for-sale equity investment

thereafter.

The Group’s share of the interest in CSCHL amounted to
HK$959,393,000 as at 30 September 2009, including the
Group's share of results, net of tax, of HK$49,142,000 in
the current year. The gain on deemed disposal amounted to
HK$330,717,000 was credited to the consolidated income

statement in the current year.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length. All associates were

indirectly held by the Company.
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EREERIERER AR ZERZA
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22.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 3R <5 Bt =3

. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s associates extracted from
their management accounts at the end of the reporting
period:

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

21. EHELFHS (5)

& BRI 8% B AN 5 B B

Er:Y:
SRREEKRBABIMBER:

m%

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—-EF _—_ITTHF
TET FHE T
Assets BE 37,342 9,363,304
Liabilities B{E (46,367) (4,873,359
Revenue Y &5 - 224,399
Profit/(loss) &a¥,/ (&) (1,959) 751,652
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22. A HERE
Group
*5H
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z—-ZF :gghi
Listed equity investments REBLETMRARE -
in Hong Kong, at fair value BERAFE 1,200,105 -
Unlisted equity investments, at cost 3 EMRANIEE LK AE 1,270 9,742
1,201,375 9,742

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group'’s
available-for-sale equity investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$42,608,000
(2009: Nil).

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or
coupon rate.

The fair value of listed equity investments is based
on quoted market prices. At the end of the reporting
period, the unlisted equity investments were stated
at cost because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair values could not be measured
reliably.

RAFEE  NEB W KA #HE®R
B 7 I A42,608,0000 JT 0 IF
BEEMEEMWKZFRRNIER -

taREREEERAHLESH
BEZRAZES BEETCIHA
jmﬁ%x?"

tHBFEREZATFEERART
BB -EREHR I LEMES
REHURRES L - B AT R —

FINEBNRFEMT MERE
FERZBRZRAFETA AL
ate
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22. MfHHERSE (&)

(continued)

At 31 March 2010, the carrying amount of the Group's RZE-—ZFF=ZA=+—HB &&
interest in the following listed equity investment EFERARNEEI0O%NCBEEL
classified as available-for-sale investment exceeded 10% ETRARE SBEANHEER
of the total assets of the Group. & o

Percentage of

Particulars of equity interest
issued Business Place of attributable Principal
Name shares held structure incorporation to the Group activities
2010 2009
RHRR FREELRE
28 BREERTRSF R 11 % L 3t 2% B TEEH

ZE-Zf —TTAF

CSCHL Ordinary shares of Corporate Hong Kong 14.82 20*  Property development
HK$0.01 each and management
and hotel services
[Em LR A BB NEERRER
FHR0.01BT REEES
(3 The Group's interest in CSCHL was accounted for as an @ RUARFEE RNEBEHEE [EmHl 2
associate in the prior year (note 21). HmAEEE QR ERE (BFE21)
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BATEINRRPVIASPEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS ZEMAE
Group
*5E
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—-TF —_ZTTAHF
FET FAT
Unlisted investments, at fair value FELEMERE  BRAFE 8,759 7,347
Current portion B[ ER (8,270) -
Non-current portion JEENER 489 7,347
The above investments at 31 March 2009 and 2010 AR —FZNEFR-_F—FTF=
were, upon initial recognition, designated by the Group A=+—H Z&ﬁ)ﬁﬁ’\%}]ﬁ‘*ﬁﬁw
as financial assets as at fair value through profit or e IEETZZ@$1E7§|JEE&B’\T§@¢
loss as they are managed and their performance are BEZEBMEE" J?-ﬁ'jux—r T E
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a TIRBERE 2 Rk LE EIENIRER
documented risk management and investment strategy, fi - E@\IF{E%/E ﬁ&nﬂﬁ%?
and information about the investments are provided on B ' ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ\%%&ﬁzkﬁ ﬂTﬁEZu?
that basis to the Group’s key management personnel. EREAAKRE TR EEARR
,f/\ °©
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23.

24.

25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3
F=/=

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The fair values of the above investments are based on
the market price provided by financial institutions at the
end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2010, all of the Group's above
investments were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 44).

OTHER RECEIVABLE

The balance represented an unlisted investment
classified as loans and receivables, and was stated
at amortised cost, calculated using the effective
interest rate method. At 31 March 2010, the unlisted
investment was pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 44).

23.

24.

31 March 2010 —Z—= +—8
BROFEIERRBEPER
ZEMEE (8)

L& 2 R ETIRVBEEER
BEPREHZTELSELE-

R-Z—ZTF=A=+—A ta
ZEMEECEER EREAKE
PE—RRITEEZER. (B
44) °

H fih FE U &

EHRARRIIELTREDEAERK
}EHQM EIJ/‘% S EERK AR A BBRF
FMEFEFE- R _ZE—ZTF=F1
=+—8" #tm&éaf’ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ &
BAREE (TE—R)IFETEEZE
R (KizE44) -

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25. BRI E
Group
FKRE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$’000
—E—-TF _—TThHF
FET FHET
At beginning of year REH 651,994 536,467
Additions NE 353,902 76,831
Transfer from deposits paid for HEHEADNEHZS 81,058 34,477
purchases of land
Transfer to properties held for ~ EREFIEFE 2 ME (81,836) =
sale
Exchange realignment ME 5 38 B 1,679 4,219
At 31 March R=R=+—8H 1,006,797 651,994
Properties under development  JEHAREX[O]
expected to be recovered: BRPYE:
Within one year —F X 197,966 191,085
After more than one year ZR—F 808,831 460,909
1,006,797 651,994

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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25.

26.

27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7% %k 25 Fff 23
31 March 2010 —ZE—ZTF=A=+—H
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25. BERHYIE (8)
(continued)
The Group’s properties under development were AEBZERPYWEMRPEKR
located in Mainland China. B o
Included in the Group's properties under development AEBER —ZETF=HA=+—H
as at 31 March 2010 were land use rights with an %XJ:EIJCF%%E/\?HTFH%ZEEETE%
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$ 550,104,000 BT (ZEZT N F:
550,104,000 (2009: HK$187,694,000) held under 187,694,000/ 7T ) LA 1 HA7H 49 #5
medium term leases. Be
At 31 March 2009, the Group's properties RZEZENF=ZA=+—H &&
under development with a carrying amount of EERMEE A 442,466,000 /BT 2 %
HK$442,466,000 were pledged as security for the BRAMEERERTAEE 2 RT
Group's bank loans, as further detailed in note 44 to EEH - S IBE N B B SR 5
the financial statements. 44 -
Further particulars of the Group’s major properties HMAREEZ2ERPUEFBHR
under development are included on page 198 to 199. % 198%E 1998
DEPOSITS PAID FOR PURCHASES OF 26. BEL MRS
LAND
At 31 March 2009, the balances represented deposits RZZEZNF=A=1+—H &&
paid for future acquisition of parcels of land in 7% B A A 2R R B K e ERAS :I:iﬁZZ
Mainland China. The carrying amounts of the deposits Ze BN EHMiRE ZREME R
paid for the purchases of land approximated to their fair NEEHEL -
values.
INVENTORIES 27. %8
Group
KM
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ZEF _—_ZTThF
TFTHET FAET
Raw materials JR# 945 937
Finished goods 47X on 3,710 3,698
Food and beverages B o &R 36,362 40,799
41,017 45,434
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R 25 fff =+

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in the balance is an amount of HK$50,577,000
(2009: HK$70,754,000) representing the trade debtors
of the Group.

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

28. BER e R A RIRF

482 B 3550,577,0008 T (2 E
L& 170,754,000 70 ) BANEBR 2
JEWE ZERN -

Group
TEH
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-8F —ITTNF
F#ET FETT
Trade debtors 2 5 FE WK 63,916 83,444
Impairment R (13,339) (12,690)
50,577 70,754

The aged analysis of such debtors as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provision, is as follows:

RBEMR BRESERRILEER
BEINORE < BRiik 2 DT 1A T

Group

EKRE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-Z2F _—IZTITNF
F#ET THETT
Current to 30 days BB Z30H 8,768 9,695
31 to 60 days 31£260H 5,653 6,312
61 to 90 days 61290H 3,957 5,841
Over 90 days #E#@90H 32,199 48,906
50,577 70,754

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X £ =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff 33

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

146

The restaurant business is normally traded on a cash
basis. For property sales, credit terms vary in accordance
with the terms of the sale and purchase agreements.
All trade debtors are recognised and carried at their
original invoiced amounts less impairment of debtors
which is recorded when the collection of the full
amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off
as incurred.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade debtors relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade debtors are non-
interest-bearing.

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 28.EWEF &R HIE
(continued) (%8)
Credit terms EERE

BERE—RARSPWARZE Y
ELEZEERRARREEAR
mMEE - BUE RN TIIZH R 3
SRR E REAREEHRKRE
R 1 2 & W Bk SRR (B 12 T 78 S AT
FR-ZRANELR TAEH-

EZRILANEE SERKES
BRI RABENZERVER
BREEANGEERRET BEHE
YRR 8 R E R S

The movements in provision for impairment of trade KTEZRUBERZREREZEZ
debtors are as follows: BT
Group
*TEME
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-8F —_TTHF
FHET FH&ET
At beginning of year NG| 12,690 13,118
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) JB{EEBE IR (M 7E6) 3,948 322
Amount written off as uncollectible & 7~ BE U [21 #if BR (3,342) (270)
Impairment losses reversed (note 6)  JB 8 &5 18 1 # (FI5E6) - (758)
Exchange realignment E R T 43 278
At 31 March R=RA=+—H 13,339 12,690

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
debtors is a provision for individually impaired trade
debtors of HK$13,339,000 (2009: HK$12,690,000) with
a carrying amount before provision of HK$13,945,000
(2009: HK$12,726,000). Such provision was determined
after taking into account the ageing of individual
debtors’ balances, the creditworthiness of the
debtors, the repayment history and historical write-off
experience. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

28. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

The aged analysis of the trade debtors that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

28. BER e R A RIRF

(%)

lk

RABVECIRME 2 FE U BR 5K AR e D AT
L

Group

*5E
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—BF _—_ITTHHF
FET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired R HA sk R B (B 13,413 15,716
Less than 1 month past due —1{& A w8 EA 3,626 3,631
1 to 3 months past due mE—=={EA 4,048 3,989
Over 3 months past due BHAKE B =& A 28,884 47,382
49,971 70,718

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

RE A RBE 2 FRURR 508 X
EZRICBERPRBERFLER-

EaHERBIE 2 KRR A R
N% 2 EAREBRE RIFEB LK
ZEIUEP - RBBELR AT
EERR IRFERME ARG
f%%l*%iiﬁ%@ BZF
REER DR BB D - BB BB
ﬁEﬂM@%ﬁ ZNE e TR
FRBFETMER B EMRET
ERZRE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 =T —ZFF=F=+—H

29. DUE FROM A DIRECTOR

Particulars of amount due from a director, disclosed

29. Bl —REE

BRI D TEFIFE161BIE FEU— 2

pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies BEEZFHBRT:
Ordinance, are as follows:
Group x5EH
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 March during 1 April
2010 the year 2009
—E—EF FEARE —EThE
Name i %] =B=+—H RURE MA—AH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FETT
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John (director) B8 %4 (E%) 1,291 1,725 —
The amount due from a director is unsecured, interest- Rl —REZ 2 RELAEERE T
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. BRIESYSE N 4=
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 30, i  BIEFERBRCEM
PLEDGED DEPOSITS EHFER
Group Company
r 3 | . /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note HK’'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
—E-BF —_TThE —B—-BF —_ZTThE
B & T#ER FETT THET FETT
Cash and bank balances & KE1T4EF 112,883 124,820 142 3,178
Time deposits EHER 34,653 28,402 41 41
147,536 153,222 183 3,219
Less: Pledged time w: BEATEHER
deposits for long RERITER
term bank loans (21,276) (21,030) - -
Pledged time R —RIRT
deposits for ERERz
general banking EHIER
facilities (7,055) (7,041) (41) (41)
Restricted cash BERFIRE (a) (5.827) - - -
Cash and cash RekRE&EFEEER
equivalents 113,378 125,151 142 3,178
Note: P = -

(@) According to relevant contracts, a property development
company of the Group is required to place at designated bank
accounts certain amounts as deposits for potential default in
payment of mortgage loans advanced to property purchasers.
Such guarantee deposits will only be released after the property
ownership certificate is submitted to the banks as collateral.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R 25 fff =+

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

31.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances (including time deposits) of the
Group denominated in Renminbi amounted to HK$
89,523,000 (2009: HK$102,587,000). The Renminbi is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange Renminbi for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

TRADE CREDITORS

The aged analysis of trade creditors as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H

30. i BeFERARCEH

31.

ERMER (@)

RBEHR AEEZRE RS
EER (BEEHEREARE
B(TARE]) ABNETZEHA
£/ 89,523,000 BT (ZEZTNF:
102,587,00087t) - AR Kee B
HEBRAEMEE BREFEA
oz SNEE FME DI R A TE - EE K
NEEBEKNBEANRTAERE
BETFRTHEBZRITEABRAR
BEHMER-

RITMSMEZ A B T2 E A RTT
TF AR ZZEHM R E - FHE
HERZHBETI— NF—BE=
BATE TERFAKEZBIE
Be®dK TRTIRANEHAERTF
IR B - R17 4577 R IR 7
FHREERFEOHRBENT
B2 RTT e

FE 1 88 5 IR X
RBESRFR BN EDEREEE
B SR AT AN T

Group

*TEH
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-2F —ZFTITNF
FET FAET
Current to 30 days BB Z30H 21,734 11,499
31 to 60 days 31£260H 11,533 10,262
61 to 90 days 61290H 5,120 8,460
Over 90 days 8 #@90H 13,108 8,441
51,495 38,662

Trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and repayable
within the normal operating cycle.

ENE SRR/ TEANERREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 =T —ZFF=F=+—H

32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 32.MBRZHBITREMER
BORROWINGS
2010 2009
i 2 “ETNEF
Effective Effective
interest interest
Group rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000 rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000
550 EREfE  HMA TE#xT  ERERE  3HA THTL
Current
&
Bank overdrafts - unsecured - - - 55-7.8  Ondemand 962
BB -BER - gyl
Bank overdrafts - secured - - - 53-6.0  Ondemand 12,290
BB -HHEA - R
Bank loans - unsecured 2.3-5.7  April 2010 17,000 37-80  April 2009 17,000
BIER-BER —2-Z£MmA “2LNENA
Bank loans - secured 1.8-9.5 by March 2011 362,978 2.1-69 by March 2010 392,493
TER-HHHA —2—-%Zf§ “E-T%=4
Other loans - unsecured 7.0 by February 2011 11,962 - - -
EER-BEA —2——-%Cf8 -
Other Ioans secured 3.0 by March 2011 1,786 43 by March 2010 1,786
EtER-BHA —2--%Z8 “2-%%=R4
393,726 424,531
Non-current
A
Bank loans - secured 2.0-9.5 2011-2017 308,474 34-69  2010-2017 294,974
BIER-FEA —I—-%% “2-%%%
—E-tf “B—+F
Other Ioans secured 3.0 2012 2,678 43 2012 4,464
EER-FEA -E-C F-C2F
311,152 299,438
704,878 723,969
2010 2009
—Z-Zf —ETNF
Effective Effective
interest interest
Company rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000 rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000
/N EREHNE 3HAE FTET TREHNX ZEA AT
Current
BN
Bank loans - secured - - - 4.9 by March 2010 3324
ROIER-—BHEA —E-TF=f
Non-current
FEEPRA
Bank loans - secured - - - 49 0m 5,305
BOIER-—BHEA —T——F

- 8,629
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7% R <5 Bt =3

32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H

32.HRZRITRAEMER (&)

Group Company
FKME FLF
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—8F —_TTNF ZEB—FF —_TThF
FTHET FAT FHET FAT
Analysed into: RHEG:
Bank overdrafts repayable $R77#% % 18 FHf
within one year or —F RN E R
on demand B - 13,252 - -
Bank loans repayable: R1TE FUE K H
Within one year or —F A EKE
on demand BiE 379,978 409,493 - 3,324
In the second year F_F 77,446 97,242 - 3,324
In the third to fifth FE=FEZFRF
years, inclusive (BEMTF
BREAN) 194,355 143,595 - 1,981
Beyond five years AFLAE 36,673 54,137 - -
688,452 704,467 - 8,629
Other borrowings AR LA T BRI A
repayable: &z B ERX
Within one year or R—F RN
on demand ERKER 13,748 1,786 - -
In the second year F_F 1,786 1,786 - -
In the third to fifth F=FEFRF
years, inclusive (BEMTF
BREA) 892 2,678 - -
16,426 6,250 - -
704,878 723,969 - 8,629
Included in the Group's interest-bearing bank and R-ZZE-—ZFF EEEMNE ZRIT
other borrowings as at 31 March 2010 are borrowings R E A& BRE{E 290,230,000
with a carrying amount of HK$290,230,000 (2009: BT (ZZEZ NF:313,112 OOO/%
HK$313,112,000) which are denominated in Renminbi. T ERUAAREAEA  Hip
The remaining interest-bearing bank and other MECRITRAEMERABERE
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. P/ N
Certain of the Group's interest-bearing bank and other AEEETHEZRITEEMER
borrowings were secured by the pledge of certain of TAEBERAERE TEERER
the Group's assets as further detailed in note 44 to the FEEN T EHRERMF44R -

financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, certain directors of
the Company have guaranteed certain of the Group's
banking facilities up to an amount of HK$278,387,000
(2009: HK$277,035,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company's borrowings approximate to their fair value.

H]

X

REREREHHR AAQ —-El%\i
AREBIMIBITERAEIREE

& 4 278,387,000 ﬂém(:g

NF:277 035,000,%70

REBREARRERZ REEREI
HRAFE-

_\an,
’Hﬁ“ﬂfﬂf

A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 =T —ZFF=F=+—H
33. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles for
its property investment and development business.
The leases are classified as finance leases and have
remaining lease terms of one year.

At 31 March 2010, the total future minimum lease
payments under finance leases and their present values
were as follows:

33. BEffREED

AEERMERERBEREHHEB
MOBEWEMER S LFI AR
EMG B THES1F-

R_Z—BF=A=+—0 &R
BARNBERRLN 2R OBH
HEREEREMT :

Group
T5HE
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
=y = ROHEWH =LHEAD
HH®IA A8 RERE B E
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E—-BF —_TTHhF ZB—BFE —_TTANF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FETT FET FETT
Amounts payable: RIBEED
Within one year —F R 250 678 245 630
In the second year 4 - 247 - 243
Total minimum finance iR EMR
lease payments AR BRE 250 925 245 873
Future finance charges 15 2R B 75 & A (5) (52)
Total net finance lease e R &R
payables 4 FREBE 245 873
Portion classified as 5| ABNER & EHRER1h
current liabilities (245) (630)
Non-current portion 3F B EA BB 17 - 243
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34. DEFERRED TAX

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 871

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

31 March 2010 =& —

34. ;BREREA

i

HH
A=+-F

AREEREEHRAEERBEZED

during the year are as follows: N
Deferred tax liabilities BERFER
Group *5%
2010
—E-%%
Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments
in excess arising from
of related acquisition of Revaluation
depreciation subsidiaries  of properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BikERE
BRAERAE NEEEL
HRESRE NTERE NREHR At
TET TET TET TET
At 1 April 2009 RZZENELA—A 1,466 272,670 115,950 390,086
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the REEW GRS
income statement during the year %/ (BitA)Z
(note 10) EEHE (K3E10) 7,480 (2,375) 4,061 9,166
Exchange realignment R AR - - 38 38
Gross deferred tax liabilities W-E-FF=f=1+-HZ
at 31 March 2010 ERfakrKes 8,946 210,295 120,049 399,290

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED % X &

153



154

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2010 =T —ZFF=F=+—H

34. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34.RIERIA (&)
Deferred tax assets RIEREETE
Group XEH

2010

Losses available for
offsetting against
future taxable profit

HK$'000
—E-25§
AL ERRERR
BRIERZER
TH#T
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZTNEFNHA—H 330
Deferred tax credited to the income AFEEHERPNGR 2BELRIE
statement during the year (note 10) (KF&E10) 7,127
Gross deferred tax assets at R-Z—ZF=A=+—HZ
31 March 2010 BEEMIERERE 7,457
Deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the RREPRR EEHEEERAE
reporting period, presented after appropriate offsetting: BT HH:
HK$'000
FET
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RER & B B AR R &
in the consolidated statement of RZBELEHIBEAE
financial position 391,833
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7%

31 March 2010 —ZE—Z4F

=M E
A=+-H

34. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34. BEEMRIR (&)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERFA R
Group XEH
2009
“ZTNF
Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments
in excess arising from
of related  acquisition of Revaluation
depreciation subsidiaries of properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RN
BREANE RAlEEZ
MTrEEHE RYERE MEEf @
THL THT THT THT
t 1 April 2008 RZZE\EMA-A 9,399 274,841 112,580 396,820
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ AFEMEFR TR/
the income statement during (BFfA) ZBERE
the year (note 10) (K3E10) (7,933) 2,17 3,141 (6,963)
Exchange realignment XA - - 229 229
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEFNEF
at 31 March 2009 =R=t-Rz
BRHAGKEE 1,466 272,670 115,950 390,086

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

34. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 34. ;BEEMIK (&)
Deferred tax assets BRERBAEE
Group XEH
2009
Losses available
for offsetting
against future
taxable profit
HK$'000
—ETNF
A] FA DA B R R B AR A
A K 8H 2 B 1R
FAET
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZENFHEA—H 9,999
Deferred tax charged to the income REZWam KPR ZELERIE
statement during the year (note 10) (FFzE10) (9,669)
Gross deferred tax assets RZEZNF=A=+—RH2
at 31 March 2009 BIEMIAEERE 330
Deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the RREPR BEEHEEERAE
reporting period, presented after appropriate offsetting: BT :
HK$'000
FAET
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE B kR &
in the consolidated statement of BRZEERIBAE
financial position 389,756
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,am #&%W =

34. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$128,742,000 (2009: HK$159,141,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has estimated tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$85,415,000 (2009:
HK$69,354,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rates are 5% and 10%. The Group is therefore liable
to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2010, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$161,299,000 at 31 March 2010
(2009: HK$149,684,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

31 March 2010 —Z—F A=+—8

34, EERIA (&)

rEEBEREEAZCHEEBE
128,742,000 T (ZEF L F:
159,141,000/ ) ' Mt ZEEE 7]
EIBEFA A B AR 2 R RER
Fm M e REE A B AR
B2 BiIAE 18 4985,415,000% 7T
— T N5 69,354,000/ 7T)

mittEEEEER—FERAFANA
PAELA B8 2 Bl 2 A< 2K JE SR 0k A1 4K
H-mNRARKRITAIGEEELERH
ZIERT RN AERE L EHIEE
B ARt EEEERELEHE
BE-

BRI (FBECEMEFRE)  PER
MW¢2%§W%%&§%EﬁZ

8 BWEBR10% BN - GRER
m§_7?ﬂ¢ A—HREDB
THEAR -_ZEZtF+_A=+—
H&FTE A 2 B o i/ B 8235 H)
KEEMBRIZEER 2BTEARBHRG
R4 Al AT R S FE N/ R B o
ANEBZEALEAE5%X10% A
e ANEEEBERZER B A
YZHMBRARGS_TEENF—A—
ARELEZABFMD IR KEHR
AR -

R-_E—TF=A=+—H K&
B R mt A B A i Ak 3 BB SRS
TEMF 2K B R A 2 KEH&EF
BRENZENM - EERAE %
EMBRARINARARDKZER
FlzeTK- R _T—TF=A
—t+—HB RAEEA KB R T
%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁwmzmﬂmmﬁﬁ%
THRRAAEEMRBAGBG(ZZEZ N
F 1 149,684,000/ 7T ) °

NN B 1A B RS BOIR 5 RR B E EE A
Frigfiig R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

35. DEFERRED INCOME

The deferred income represents cash subsidies received
from government authority in respect of a property
development project in Mainland China. No deferred
income was released to the income statement during
the year ended 31 March 2010.

35.EEU A

IR E WA R R MR P B BT R S —
AYEBRAB IR/ -EBE
BEHRBILE - BaERPIAEET
YA e

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. 8%
Company
b /N
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-2F _—TITNF
FT#xT FET
Authorised: JETE A -
2,000,000,000 (2009: BREECI10E T2 EBRG
2,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000% (ZZFZF N,
HK$0.10 each £ :2,000,000,0000% ) 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRHERA:
1,144,122,328 (20009: EREE0N0B T EBRMD
1,144,122,328) ordinary shares of 1,144,122,3280 (ZZEZF N,
HK$0.10 each 4 :1,144,122,3280%) 114,412 114,412
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, and
other employees of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 10 October 2005 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company's shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H
37. BB AT E
RARHREB —HERERS ([&&

JD %ﬁﬁﬁliﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz
Aéh/A%hTiﬁﬁﬁﬁéi
AEIZARER2EERREAR
%'@%%4#ﬂﬁ§$&$ﬁl
HBT -Zet8IlXN—FTFTAF+
A+ B HERRIFEEHKIER]
ZETEIB N E B T FERERE
se

BRI ZET 8l ﬁﬁﬁ&&ﬁZﬁ%
ITIEEARE LR 1B iﬂ$
REBITRMDESE 210% ° Aﬁ
ﬂETZt%Aﬁh/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
R AT 21T AR D LR AERI1218 A
HETSBBEARGTRFEEITR
MBEZ1% - EHE—FREZE
J% E EB 38 1L PR BE - Il &S SR BB FE AR
RAE bk

RYTESHERELTELESARD
BB ERITESHE (KEH R
AL) BEBBAR TTﬁfrE%ﬂﬂx
190.1% s PAMEM1218 B HARE - 4818
B (RETBSEAR 72k1ﬁ,
85,000,000/ 7T - Bl 5 B 78 L IERR
BRBRERE RS E#EE -
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer. The amount
payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1. The
exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors and shall be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the offer date,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

37. lBBRHEstE (&)

BREEREE AE28RAEIR
BOEAMBRERFNREAR/E
ToRTHERENTRHRESRE

iE °

BREZTEENRESTET ¥
ARNUTEBEZEREE : (WRHNRE
AHM(ZAKEAEHEH)RER
FrEgE®RERAY ZWTE: (i)
MREZEZHHIAREEAR
MRS HBRERMY 2FHYWT
B K(i)RmHEE-

BB ERTRE ARFERR

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:

BENBRE LER-

EARFEAR a8 TRARITEZ
AT

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
HK$ per share HK$ per share
—2-25 —ZTNE
mEFy MEFH
TR BEENA e B EREHNE
SkiEx BRET
At beginning of year REH 0.59 29,300,000 132 47,600,000
Forfeited during the year RERKR - - 249 (18,300,000)
At 31 March R=R=+-AH 0.59

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 4 R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS E]ﬁ’n #&%Bﬁ =

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2010

Number of options Exercise price*

HK$ per share

31 March 2010 —Z—F A=+—8
37. B ERTE (&)
REmERRERITHEZBRE T
FERITEBELT
—E—E5§

Exercise period

MREERNE fTER fTERME
BRET
21,300,000 0.30 26-10-2005 to 25-10-2015
7,300,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
700,000 2.15 24-2-2008 to 23-8-2012
29,300,000

2009

Exercise price*
HK$ per share

Number of options

—ETNF

Exercise period

B ES AR TEE” 1T AR
SRER
21,300,000 0.30 26-10-2005 to 25-10-2015
7,300,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
700,000 2.15 24-2-2008 to 23-8-2012
29,300,000
o The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * BRAEITEEAREHERSAIRET

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

HARA A Z E RN Z E T

= °

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E X &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff 33

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

37.

38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 29,300,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 29,300,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$2,930,000 and share
premium of HK$14,455,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 29,300,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.56% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 56 to 57 of the
financial statements.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as
explained in note 17 to the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 ¥k

37.

38.

RRARHEETE (&)

RI|EBKR RBRIEFTE - A2 AHE
29,300,00017 &8 AR #E i) AR 715 ©
BERARBBITRALERE 2@ET
FHR T ZERESERARARE
4N 2% 7729,300,0000% & 3@ A% © EE AN
% N £2,930,00078 7T B 19 0% (B
A14,455,000/8 70 (1B 3 1TH X
Al ) o

LA SREE B - IRIEETE
XA F/529,300,0000% B A% 4 1 K
TE-RARAREBEZRITRMY
2.56% ©

ER ]
(a) x&KMH

AREBERFERAFE
EERBEREEZHE 2R
B RS ES6ESTE 2 R A 1
=L DES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

31 March 2010 —ZZE—ZTF=A=+—H
38. RESERVES (continued) 38. | (&)
(a) Group (continued) (a) %@ (8)
The reserve funds of the Group represent the non- PINS th:%f%?%El SR B A
distributable statutory reserves of the Group's BT B A B BE D IR 2 0E FE AR
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China. The $°WJ§@TZ%$%H§*§T§
transfers to these reserves are determined by the REAREZBEREEBEZSE
board of directors of the subsidiaries in accordance EE - L ERBEAIERRZE
with the relevant laws and regulations of Mainland BHHEIAESMMB AR Z
China. The reserve funds can be used to offset N
against future losses or to increase the capital of
the subsidiaries.
(b) Company (b) AT
Share Capital Share
premium Contributed redemption Options  Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ki g%

fE REER WORE REEEG  HEEN #it
I TR TR TR TR TR TR

t 1 April 2008 R-EENF
MA—-A 1,275,015 59,759 316 21,022 1,329 1,357,441
Equity-settled share b 33
option arrangements BREZH - - - (14,745) 6,258 (8,487)
Total comprehensive REEBZANA
income for the year 11 - - - - 43,183 43,183
Proposed final dividend ~ BERER S 12 - - - - (11,441) (11,441)
At3TMarch2009and  RZFENE
1 April 2009 ZA=t-BEk
“EENE
MA—A 1,275,015 59,759 316 6,277 39,329 1,380,069
Total comprehensive REEBZEHA
income for the year 11 - - - - 34,065 34,065
Proposed final dividend B REHRS 12 - - - - (22,882) (22,882)
At 31 March 2010 R-Z-%
ZA=t-H 1,275,015 59,759 316 6,271 50,512 1,391,879
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bff 33

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

38. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of the Group reorganisation on 12 August
1991 and represented the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by
the Company and the combined net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation, less the effects of the bonus issue
of shares in previous years.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain specific
circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R 25 fff =+

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

39. DISPOSAL/DEREGISTRATION OF A
SUBSIDIARY

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary

In the prior year, on 6 October 2008, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in Extra Well
Group Limited which was engaged in the trading
of garments and accessories. The disposal was
settled by a cash consideration of HK$40,000.

(a)

39. HE& i 88— RFH B 2 B s

HE—MRMELR

RZZEZNFEF+ARHE R
% B & EExtra Well Group
Limited2 2 R A= ZA
A ER KRG E S E-
% H & AR £ R E 4940,000%8
TLEAS o

2009
Notes HK$'000
—TETNF
Bt 5 FHET
Net assets disposed of: HEZFEE:
Property, plant and equipment ER e 14 5
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE 41
Prepayments and other debtors  TE{ 538 & H i & 3k 5
Sundry creditors and accruals H e BRK K BT B A (12)
39
Exchange equalisation reserve REERERZEHFERHE
realised on disposal (270)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —E KB A 7 A% 6 271
40
Satisfied by cash IR & WK 40

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E FX £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

39. DISPOSAL/DEREGISTRATION OF A
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of a

39. HE& i 88— R P B 2 B s

(&)
(a) HE—RMKRBLT (&)

FERALENBRRI R MA
SFEBBRSALFRZD

subsidiary is as follows: AR
2009
HK$'000
—EENEF
FAET
Cash consideration WEIEE 40
Cash and bank balances HEZHRE RRITHENR
disposed of (41)
Net outflow of cash and cash HE—FERBRAAzRE R
equivalents in respect of ReFEEBEERESMLFE

the disposal of a subsidiary
(b) Deregistration of a subsidiary

During the year, the Group has deregistered a
dormant wholly-owned subsidiary. No net asset
value remained at the date of deregistration and
the exchange equalisation reserve relating to that
subsidiary was recognised in the income statement
as gain on deregistration of a subsidiary of
HK$943,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

31 March 2010 —ZE—F4F

=HA=+—~H

40. R B &K ERMHE

(a) Reconciliation of profit before tax to net (a) BRRMAFHEEEENRS
cash flows from operating activities: mBHZHE:
Grou
X%
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-%F “ETNF
FTHET TAT
Profit before tax BR B0 A1l 42 A 436,517 186,084
Adjustments for: FER
Bank interest income RITH B U A (867) (1,338)
Interest income from other receivable H e YR I S A (174) -
Depreciation e 37,974 36,506
Equity-settled share option expense MR EERNREEZ H - (8,487)
Finance costs BBER i 31,092 31,598
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets AT BEIEZSREE L
at fair value through AYEER/ (M)
profit or loss, net F (908) 207
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— B D alE A - (271)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary — [E1 BT B 2 R O o 1 A (943) -
Gain on disposal of investment HEREME R
properties - (365)
Loss on disposal of items of HENE BEK
property, plant and equipment REEE 29 2,791
Gain on disposal of & ATt B 1R B 4 A
available-for-sale investments \ (20,587) (39,999)
Gain on deemed disposal of BIEHE — R E R alER
an associate (330,717) =
Impairment of trade debtors EWE ZRHR 2 RE 3,948 322
Impairment of other receivables B e WK 2 LB - 1,469
Release of goodwill upon sale of HECREEMEZHEEH
developed properties 153 1,135
Write-off of items of property, ME - BEREEHME
plant and equipment \ 2,354 -
Recognition of prepaid land AN E A BR
lease payment 378 94
Share of profits and losses of associates ~ FE{ B & A &)@ 7 & B 18 (48,163) (143,096)
Changes in fair value of REMEZ N TEE
investment properties, net g (26,186) (6,983)
83,900 59,667
Increase in properties under development — 7Ei2¥) % 2 12 (350,344) (53,311)
Decrease in properties held for sale RIELEME 2D 34,303 26,588
Decrease in inventories FEH)R D 4,549 6,782
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, deposits FEMBE X - i R IBUFRIA
and prepayments B/ CEh) \ 69,320 (9,786)
Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors EREZERMEM,/ (RD) 12,721 (58,947)
Increase in sundry creditors, accruals and ~ EALERBRF EAT B A K
deposits received BUYR  Ey 2 10,871 46,213
Increase in deferred income BN 2 5 261,305 -
Increase in deposits received WER & 52N 5,637 -
Increase in amounts due to directors FERTEEEM 20,757 60,048
Cash generated from operations REXBHMGZHE 153,019 77,254
Mainland China tax paid BB R (61,643) (6,479)
Dividends paid ERARE (11,441) (22,882)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders B DS R S (30,088) (21,959)
Net cash flows from operating activities — REEK 7 BERAFE 49,847 25,934

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X £ =
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Major non-cash transaction

On 30 September 2009, the Group’s advance to
CSCHL, a then associate, of HK$17,160,000 was
capitalised into 896,000,000 ordinary shares at
HK$0.01 each of CSCHL.

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities
not provided for in the financial statements were as

P

40. FEBE KR ERME (8)

(b) EXHEHBRSH

R-ZZEZEAFNALA=+H 'K
S8 EERFNB SN EREN
B —%17,160,0008 T2 &
o EEEAEEEFR0.01
7B 7T 896,000,000 0% L3 % o

41. R AR

RB|EMR AEERARF KT
A BREZHIARABEMT :

follows:
Group Company
*TEMH b /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-TF —TTNF ZB—BF —_TTNF
THET T FTET FHET
Guarantees given for METBEMEZ
mortgage loan facilities  #RIBE &
granted to property i E i B & (R
purchasers 90,238 76,816 1,473 2,651
Guarantees given for BB R RER
banking facilities RITEE
granted to subsidiaries E B B AR - - 1,284,472 1,025,170
Guarantee given to a Bt — B & A AR
bank in connection TEEmMIEL
with facilities granted to YR
an associate - 11,000 - 11,000
90,238 87,816 1,285,945 1,038,821

As at 31 March 2009, the banking facilities granted
to an associate subject to a guarantee given by the
Group and the Company was utilised to the extent of
approximately HK$8,516,000. The relevant banking
facilities were released during the year ended 31 March
2010.

The banking facilities granted to subsidiaries subject
to guarantees given by the Company were utilised to
the extent of approximately HK$632,538,000 (2009:
HK$563,433,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 4 R
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42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15) under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to
17 years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2010, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

31 March 2010 —ZE—F4F

B=+—H

42. EEHERH

(a)

ESHEA

AEERBLEMELHHHE
HEETHREWME (MiE15) - &
LHELPREXR ZHBNF
—EtEtF-HEHRK RN
BREETAXMNERZE IR
£ TIB5 T A A e E Bt im
EHABES-

RZFE—ZTF=A=+—8"
AEBRIBEE ST LN TS

HRSE S U BB G LA E
R ATINER Y RIEF S 8 5
T

Group
*5E
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—-TF —"ZTTAHF
FET FAET
Within one year R—FR 50,125 51,898
In the second to fifth years, RE_EZEFRF
inclusive (BREEMF) 135,527 122,721
After five years RERF % 66,425 92,304
252,077 266,923
As lessee (b) EREHEA

The Group leases certain of its properties
under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from 1 to 12 years and rentals are normally
fixed in accordance with the respective tenancy
agreements.

$’EI7FETJ@Z‘“*£?H 5 & BEAE A

ETYME-MEHELSHZREE
KN FT—=2+=F-1
CHE—MEBEEECHEE
BHREE -

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X £ =

169



170

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42 EEHERHE (&)

(continued)

(b) As lessee (continued)

At 31 March 2010, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

(b) EBABEA ()

R-_EB-—ZTF=A=+—8"
AEBEREBER T HEH 2
THRHELEHEERRAX
e xEHSEEMT:

Group

r 3 .|
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-TF _—ITTIhHF
THET FET
Within one year R—FR 23,329 17,508

In the second to fifth years, RE_ZFRF

inclusive (BREEEMSE) 70,579 43,703
After five years NERFE 28,248 29,484
122,156 90,695

The operating leases of certain properties also
called for additional rentals, which would be
based on certain percentage of turnover of the
operations being undertaken therein pursuant
to the terms and conditions as stipulated in
the respective rental agreements. As the future
turnover of these operations could not be
accurately determined as at the end of the
reporting period, the relevant contingent rental has
not been included.
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43. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 42(b) above, the Group had the following
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

43, K iz

RS BR - BRI K 5E42(0) 2 8
LHE ARSI AEBB AT AL

Group

*5E
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—BF _—_ITTHHF
FHET FHET

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI ME B AR B

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 845 1,670
Purchases of land use rights B At AR 512,318 294,421
Properties under development BERPYE 83,264 59,629
Capital contribution to a subsidiary H—RENBRRICERER 54,561 115,597
650,988 471,317

In addition, the Group has rights to purchase pre-
determined lots of land in the PRC pursuant legal
binding agreements. The commitment under such legal
binding agreements amounted to RMB450 million
(2009: RMB450 million).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did
not have any significant commitments.

Rt AEBHEE LXRM 21
& ARETEBERLENL
o R EREAAEBNBRERR
ARBOERTFET(ZTTA: A
RENEARFET) °

RB|EBHR AQARWEEEME
RAEHE o
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44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

45.

As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the
Group's property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development, properties
held for sale, time deposits, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and other receivable, with a total
carrying value of approximately HK$1,515,962,000
(2009: HK$1,610,487,000) were pledged to secure
general banking and other facilities granted to the
Group. In addition, rental income generated in respect
of certain investment properties of the Group were
assigned to bankers to secure loan facilities granted to
the Group.

On 11 July 2007, a 20%-owned associate of the Group,
CSCHL issued US$125,000,000 secured convertible
notes. In this regard, the Group, being a shareholder
of CSCHL, has entered into a share charge agreement
by pledging 2,040,000 shares of CSCHL and granting
certain indemnities. Further details of the transaction
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
11 July 2007. The share charge agreement was released
and the indemnities were cancelled during the year
ended 31 March 2010.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the

a4,

45.

BEEH

RIREBR AEB X BREEMEY
1,515,962,000 BT (ZEZ N F:

1,610,487,0008 7T) < & T W % K
ER&E REYFE EEDE &
EFLEYE THER EAFE
quMa SR RMBEEREMER
REEERE RSB —RBITRE

A E o I REB TRAZBMIRE
ME S WS ERE UBRER
TZEE-.

R_EBEZELtFELA+—HB A5EH
HE20%ER 2 — M E QA
9 9k &= B %% 77125,000,000%E 7T HY
EERFITHRREE-BElt - A& E
VEREMMER 2 RRFTY 7 HEF
2,040, oooﬁxééﬁﬁ%@zwﬁwﬁ
HETHRERIZTHZ FBHIR
$‘$l_77t¢tﬂ+ Azna
HRZE—EF=A=+—H1t
FE RBEFBHECERNMBE
REHZCEUH

FHEALXS

(a) MERENRIBHREH MM
AR HoN NEBEREREE

following transaction with a related party during ATHEITTINRS:
the year:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E—-8F —ITThF
THET FAT
Rental paid to a director NHESGE—NES
(note) (BF3E) 48 48
Note: Bt 5 -

The rental paid to a director was determined based on mutually
agreed rental rates. In the opinion of the directors, the above
transaction was entered into by the Group in the normal course
of business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 ¥k

R EH Z%‘Eittfﬁ’ﬁﬁ%$$ﬁ
& BEERR LIRS HAKERAE
%i‘%ﬁFETIO



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

(0)
(i)

Other transactions with related parties:

In the prior years, the Group acquired a
55% equity interest in Hunan Carrianna
(the "Acquisition”) from KC Ma and KY Ma,
the substantial shareholders and executive
directors of the Company. In respect of the
Acquisition, KC Ma and KY Ma have given
an undertaking to indemnify the Group
against monetary losses up to RMB216 million
arising from the failure of Hunan Carrianna
to acquire any portion of the pre-determined
lots of land and Hunan Carrianna’s cost of
acquisition of any portion of these pieces of
land which is higher than the pre-determined
price.

The above transaction also constitutes a
connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The directors of the Company have
guaranteed certain of the Group’s banking
facilities up to HK$278,387,000 (20009:
HK$277,035,000) as at the end of the
reporting period, as further detailed in note
32 to the financial statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Except for an amount due to a director of
HK$63,151,000 (2009: HK$58,281,000) by
the Group which is not repayable within one
year, the remaining balances are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Except for an amount due to a director of
HK$25,415,000 (2009: HK$12,751,000)
by the Company which is not repayable
within one year, the remaining balances are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

31 March 2010 —ZE—F4F

B=+—H

A5. FREANLTR S (&)

(©)

(i)

(i)

(i)

(i)

MEABEALRTYX

)K‘

9

X

RAE RNEERAEKE
ZEEBRREBMTESS
NEEERENRTE
U B 4R e = AR5 5 % 1 2
(TWiEx1E]) - AWK E
EE - SNELEEESN
RELERBERBIRZARK
2 16EM ERBEAEE
P A R (S R A A R R
2 1 b B 1 {A) BB 19 R Uk
B AaREEE
HIHB K o

Pl SGR EHREE
+HAZEREEBBEA
TR 5

RBmEBHR AQAZ
EERAAEE 2RTT
CERBERLER A
278,387,000 0 (=&
T N4 277,035,000/
TC)  FE BB A B R
EHFFE32 ©

Beh 2 REE %

BRAEERERN —RES
@1mow%ﬁ2%a
HA B i — F Sh h
F: 58,281,000,%7c> H
HEHR AR EEER I
B F BN

BRARBEN —BRES
25,415,000/ T 40 ( =
ZTENF:12,751,0008
TL) B A EIE T
R WEEFEERE-
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(0)

(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Except for amounts due to minority
shareholders of HK$37,653,000 (2009:
HK$31,453,000) which are not repayable
within one year, the remaining balances are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Details of the amounts due from/to associates
as at the end of the reporting period
are included in note 21 to the financial
statements.

Details of the Group's advance to a director
of the Company are included in note 29 to
the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of

A5. FREANLR S (&)

(©)

(d)

(&)

(iii)

(iv)

B B & 2 &R E
37,653,000 BT (==
S 31,453,000 7T )
ZEFRBBB—FIH
HEHRAEERF 28
2 [E] F B R o

PR AR U, 1<) B
EREIRKFBHNRTH
WK EE21 -

AEBRA-—REE 2B
ERCE SR Sl
29 @

REEFEBTBAB 2 WM :

the Group:

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-8F _—TTHF
FHET FAT
Short term employee benefits EEES &N 21,387 17,042
Post-employment benefits RIKEF 166 166

Total compensation paid to REBEEAB 2B
key management personnel 21,553 17,208

Further details of directors’

emoluments are

included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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31 March 2010 ==& A=+—8

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 46. REMARNICEM T A

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

MRsg—EBENERTAR

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting HARH) AR TEME -
period are as follows:
2010 —2—FF
Financial assets EMEE
Group
*50
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
designated Available-
as such upon for-sale
initial Loans and financial
recognition  receivables assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BROTFETIR
RREER ¢ 3] AHHEZ
RENEMEE & e B eMEE it
TET FTERT FTET TET
Due from associates, FE Wik & R A
net of impairment E A - 21,644 - 21,644
Available-for-sale AHRLERE
investments - - 1,201,375 1,201,375
Other receivable Hfth e U 3% - 11,626 - 11,626
Financial assets BRATEIRR
at fair value through RBEFRER
profit or loss EREE 8,759 - - 8,759
Financial assets included TARKERR
in debtors, deposits and ReERENFEL
prepayments SREE - 181,093 - 181,093
Due from a director ElR—UESE - 1,291 - 1,291
Restricted cash BR#IRE - 5,827 - 5,827
Pledged time deposits HRTEHER - 28,331 - 28,331
Cash and cash equivalents ~ H&LkEE£EEEH - 113,378 - 113,378
8,759 363,190 1,201,375 1,573,324

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E X &
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 46. BENRNzEMT R (&)
CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of TR REBENTRIANKS
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting HIRHBREE : (48)

period are as follows: (continued)

2010 —$—%F
Financial liabilities eMAaR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
HK$'000
DIESmFrtEN
eMAR
THET
Due to a jointly-controlled entity FE A HE 15 ) & 88 (B 5E20)

(note 20) 612
Due to associates (note 21) JE B & N A (BPRE21) 3,515
Trade creditors FERTE 5 BR K 51,495
Financial liabilities included in sundry FTAEMBENERER  EFER R

creditors, accruals and deposits Bz semAE

received 81,309
Due to directors ERNES 81,025
Due to minority shareholders JET D BIRR R 47,089
Interest-bearing bank and other FERRITRAEMES

borrowings 704,878
Finance lease payables FET B & FH 4V 245

970,168
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31 March 2010 —ZZE—ZTF=A=+—H
46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 46. BEMNBNZEMI R (&)
CATEGORY (continued)
The ccjarry.ing amounts of each of the categories.of THAG—BENL R T ANSRE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting HASk O BE (S © (48)
period are as follows: (continued)
2009 —ETAF
Financial assets SRMEE
Group
rEHE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
designated Available-
as such upon for-sale
initial Loans and financial
recognition receivables assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BATES R
RRBER ERR AftHE 2
RENEREE EUER TREE @t
TET TAT TET THET
Due from associates, kN
net of impairment ERE — 43,180 - 43,180
Available-for-sale investments A {f &2 & = = 9,742 9,742
Financial assets BRAFEIERR
at fair value through REB&EFRER
profit or loss TREE 7,347 - - 7,347
Financial assets included AR
in debtors, deposits and Be RENFIEN
prepayments EREE - 237,728 - 237,728
Pledged time deposits BREBREH — 28,071 — 28,071
Cash and cash equivalents ~ H&REEEEHEHE - 125,151 - 125,151
7,347 434,130 9,742 451,219
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

46. BENRNZEMIA (&)

CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

NMIRE-—RBENERTARKRE

HRmAREE: (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 4 R

2009 —ZEENF
Financial liabilities eMEaR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
HK$'000
LABESH R AN FHE Y
TRBE
FATT
Due to a jointly-controlled entity FE S H [R5 6 & 88 (F5E20)

(note 20) 612
Due to associates (note 21) FETEE N A (FTsE21) 3,457
Trade creditors ERE SER 38,662
Financial liabilities included in sundry STAHEHMEMNERNR BrEBRAK

creditors, accruals and deposits Bz zsemBE

received 56,343
Due to directors EfNES 60,048
Due to minority shareholders FE T D BUARER 39,012
Interest-bearing bank and FFRRITREMEE

other borrowings 723,969
Finance lease payables ERTREE A 873

922,976
Financial assets PHEE
Company
r. 3/N
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-BF _—ZTTAF
F#ET FAT
Loans and receivables: ,\/TA&FEJ%ZHEM :
Due from subsidiaries, JE U BT 1B A
net of impairment Ef}ﬁ@;“%%ﬁi 1,819,100 1,695,967
Financial assets included in other AT ACH b FE U BR R K
receivables and deposits e eMEE 82 118

Due from associates & Uk Bt 22 A 159 159

Pledged time deposits E AR E BF R a1 41

Cash and cash equivalents HeEkBRE&EMEEHR 142 3,178

1,819,524 1,699,463
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

47.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

31 March 2010 —ZE—F4F

B=+—H

46. BENRNZEMIA (&)

N RE—

BENESRIANBRSE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting HIRHBREE : (48)
period are as follows: (continued)
Financial liabilities eWmAaR
Company
b /g
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-BF _—TThF
TFTHET FAT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: ABESEK AT EN SR EE
Due to subsidiaries JE ST Bt /B & &) 310,176 219,998
Financial liabilities included in FFAEAMEN R K
sundry creditors and accruals Bt ERzeRBE 1,221 2,084
Due to directors ENES 41,195 22,773
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITEE - 8,629
352,592 253,484

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly

fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

47. X FERIE

AEBEERTIRBETE RKEM

BILTEZRAYE:
F—E: RRESEEXKBERE

/v/v_
8
/vk—
H =8

BT 52 BE (REH
%) 2 AV

REBEBTEFERF
B M&F[ETEZR
EEEHABEEBAE
EEALEES SEae S¢S

BEERAFERF
B M&ZFHETEZM
BE2H ASIEILIFK
EABREM S EE (1T
ABRGABE) G
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

47. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) 47. XFEHREB (&)
As at 31 March 2010, the Group held the following R—ZE—ZTF=ZA=+—H K&
financial instruments measured at fair value: T—ir oA FEF=E HM‘%I
Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010: R-_EBE—ZFF=ZA=+—HEERQ
$1EZ BE:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—B $_E | -1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FTAET TATL TEL
Available-for-sale equity AHEEERE
investments 1,200,105 - - 1,200,105
Financial assets at fair value AT ETRENER
through profit or loss nREZEREE - 489 8,270 8,759
1,200,105 489 8,270 1,208,864
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 FARE=ZERAFEFTEZEZ W
during the year are as follows: F -
HK$'000
TFET
Financial assets at fair value BAVEIENRESTRE EMEE
through profit or loss:
At 1 April 2009 A —_ZEENFMHA—H 7,347
Total gains recognised in the income E/\J& sk 2 B e iR 2 W s A FE
statement included in other income 923
At 31 March 2010 RZZE—ZTF=HA=+—H 8,270
During the year ended 31 March 2010, there were no HE_ZT-—ZTF-_A=1+—HILF
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 g Tﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁéﬁ/\ﬁﬂ% B —
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. BzAVTEAENTERE=HN
FEFTEPE A E L -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank loans and overdrafts, finance leases, other
interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and cash and
bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade debtors and trade creditors,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with floating
interest rates. The effective interest rates and terms
of repayment of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 32. The
Group has not used any derivative to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk.

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

48. MERMBEEE B R R BRK

AEEsTESMTABERTE
RME NS REETIR At
MEER ARRe MIRITER %
EFeMTAZEERNRAAEKE
EBERET - AKBNEZHE
BEREFELECEMEREERE
BE-PImEZEEERRENE S
AR

AREFBERTESRZETEZRBRS
MExRERE INERR EERMR-
nBETRRLESFERAR &
ZeEHNLABREEZTAR 2K
BBty e

I 2 W B2

AEEmE 2 m5NEEB AR T
B MAEBIZFHANERGFEZR
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. UERREEHRERBEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s and the
Company's profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings). There is no impact on the
Group's equity, except on the retained profits.

(%)

FIERBR (8)

TRETERMTEEERRETE
ZERT AENABNREHY
AEE R AR AR BAEF GF B
BRAREEHE) HAREZR
AABEYE RDRFBRI -

Group Company
*EE 3/

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/ (decrease) in

(decrease) in profit before (decrease) in profit before

basis points tax basis points tax

HK$'000 HK$'000

®/in,/ ®/im,/

&/m/ (D) @/m,/ (WD)

(BB BRiaias (WD) BE Rz

TET TAET

2010 —E-%£
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (3,526) - -
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (7,051) - -
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 3,526 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 7,051 - -
2009 ZTTNF

Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (3,624) 50 (43)
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (7,248) 100 (86)
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 3,624 (50) 43
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 7,248 (100) 86
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R 25 fff =+

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China with most of the Group’s monetary assets,
liabilities and transactions principally denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, respectively. Majority
of the sales, purchases and expenditure incurred by the
operating units of the Group are denominated in the
units” functional currency and as a result, the Group
does not anticipate significant transactional currency
exposures. The Group has not used any derivative to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The credit risk of the Group's financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances, time deposits,
other receivable, debtors and deposits, amount due
from a director, amounts due from associates and
quoted and unquoted financial instruments, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

48. MERMBEEE B R R BRK

(%)

b s 1 B

AEET2EEERTERPEAE
MAKEEREE BEMRSE
EUETRARBEAE-SHEE
BUELAZHE HENMIHINZ
EEBUZINEEEAE N5E
WIRABTAEMOTET RS HINE
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{5 & W B2

SEYEENEASTHRAR X
SEEBEREE (AP EERE
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. U BRI EEEEREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk pd h-g4

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and have available funding through
bank and other borrowings to meet its working capital
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

AEEsBREREFRERE MR
eHFELHEB REBRITERLK
HfEEAmEASEEEES Y

Bk

TRAARERBEDRHERA
& DA 40 7 BT 3T B e 31 2
R

Group *EE
2010
—Z-Z%
Within
1 year or 1to5 Over
on demand years 5 years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EUF -EN0E
BREXE EILIFUT BENE #t
TET TET THET THET
Due to a jointly-controlled entity ~ JEfT R H A 612 - - 612
Due to associates FENEE DRI 3,515 - - 3,515
Trade creditors ENE5EH 51,495 - - 51,495
Financial liabilities included STARM MR
in sundry creditors, accruals and EAERR
deposits received BElize s ema R 75,662 5,647 - 81,309
Due to directors ENES 17,874 63,151 - 81,025
Due to minority shareholders ERPERE 9,436 37,653 - 47,089
Interest-bearing bank and MERITREMEE
other borrowings 393,726 274,479 36,673 704,878
Interest payments on WERTREMEEZ
interest-bearing bank and other ME X
borrowings 19,513 42,204 1,254 62,971
Finance lease payables ERRERD 250 - - 250
Guarantees given to banks in REENFE-—HERTEE
connection with facilities granted T {EHIER
to property purchasers 90,238 - - 90,238
662,321 423,134 37,927 1,123,382
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=A=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. MHGAREEBERRE B %
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk (continued) REREmE (F)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities THRAEREENRBREHARNEHE
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the B UNEARTRN R E R H
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: BER: (&)

(continued)

Group XEH
2009
ZETNE
Within
1 year or 1to5 Over
on demand years 5 years Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FEPT =4 I

FRERE EAFUT BENE @t

TEL FET THT TET

Due to a jointly-controlled entity ~ FEff 3t HT“%‘JE %%’R 612 - - 612
Due to associates FEHH’%E’& 3,457 - - 3,457
Trade creditors AN %EE 38,662 - - 38,662
Financial liabilities included STARMEMAERR

in sundry creditors, accruals and EHAEAR

deposits received BElecepaE 56,343 - - 56,343
Due to directors ENES 1,767 58,281 - 60,048
Due to minority shareholders B DERE 7,559 31,453 = 39,012
Interest-bearing bank and MERITREMEE

other borrowings 424,531 245,302 54,136 723,969
Interest payments on interest- WERTREMEEZ

bearing bank and other MEZ R

borrowings 17,031 22,246 2,755 42,032
Finance lease payables ERRERY 668 257 - 925
Guarantee given to a bank in g-HBEARERTEE

connection with facilities granted M {EH 1R

to an associate 8,516 - - 8,516
Guarantees given to banks in REENE-HERTEE

connection with facilities granted i fEH 1R

to property purchasers 76,816 = = 76,816

635,962 357,539 56,891 1,050,392

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED 3£ f% & 185



186

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 fff =3

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

48. MERMBEEE B R R BEK

The maturity profile of the Company’'s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on

(#&)

REREmRE (F)

TREBARANBEHRNERE
B LENRFTRNRAENEH

the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: (EDE
Company r: /N
2010
-3-%%
Within 1
year or on 1to5 Over 5
demand years years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EUTE —FULE
REXE AEUT AFENE #t
TET THET THT THET
Due to subsidiaries FERMBARNIE 310,176 - - 310,176
Financial liabilities included STAE MR BRT
in sundry creditors, accruals and EAERR
deposits received BElie s emBk 1,221 - - 1,221
Due to directors ENES 15,780 25,415 - 41,195
Guarantees given to banks in RHBLRABRITEE
connection with facilities granted T {EH &R
to subsidiaries 632,538 - - 632,538
Guarantees given to banks in REBENFE-—HERITEE
connection with facilities granted M {EH 1R
to property purchasers 1,473 - - 1,473
961,188 25,415 - 986,603
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R 25 fff =+

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

31 March 2010 —_ & —%F

F=ZA=+—H

48. MERMBEEE B R R BRK

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on

(%)

mEBRESEE (E)

TREBARARBEHRNERME
& AR BRI IR G E &9 2 5

the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: BER: (&)
(continued)
Company . 3/ |
2009
3
Within
1 year or 1t05
on demand years  Over 5 years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ENTE —FNULEE
RERE RENRT RFNRE @t
FEL TET T FET
Due to subsidiaries FENMBARNE 219,998 - - 219,998
Financial liabilities included in qu)\ﬁﬂ‘lﬁJEWEm
sundry creditors, accruals and BHERRENREZE
deposits received BEE 2,084 - - 2,084
Due to directors ENES 10,022 12,751 - 22,773
Interest-bearing ez RITER
bank borrowings 3,324 5,305 - 8,629
Interest payments on ez RITERZ
interest-bearing M B X
bank borrowings 241 152 - 393
Guarantees given to banks in RHBARERIER
connection with facilities granted i fEH E{R
to subsidiaries 563,433 - - 563,433
Guarantee given to a bank in g-HHEARERTEE
connection with facilities granted M {EHIER
to an associate 8,516 - - 8,516
Guarantees given to banks in REENE-HERIEE
connection with facilities granted i fEH ER
to property purchasers 2,651 - - 2,651
810,269 18,208 - 828477
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. MEREEEHERBE

188

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from equity
investments classified as available-for-sale investments
(note 22) as at 31 March 2010. The Group's listed
equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange
and are valued at quoted market price at the end of the
reporting period.

The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year
to the end of the reporting period, and their respective
highest and lowest points during the year were as
follows:

(%)

B 155 &, B

B AN (B 15 R B 4 R AR 48 8K |
BEREFEEZESNEBRANE
HZRAFEMNKZAR - RN _F—
EE=ZA=+—B AEEFMEY
ZBRAERRRIIKES AL E
BE(MEFE=+=) R|EHR
AEBE 2z EHIRETDRR Z AR
ZH{E{E

REXZRZBESFEE RARSE
HRZERRORZAH  RAFE
HEz&m R&xEHEHNT

High/low
during the
year ended

31 March 31 March
2010 2010
R-E—2F

=A=+—H

2 FRHBEHMA
=A=+-—AH ZE/ &

—z-2%

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BEE—EEEH
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 5% change in the fair values of the equity
investment, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, for the listed available-for-sale
equity investments, the impact is deemed to be on the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve and no
account is given for factors such as impairment which
might impact on the income statement.
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. MERBREEHRERBEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Equity price risk (continued) BREmE (&)
Carrying
amount of Increase/
equity decrease
investment in equity*
BxkE
REE F18 i
2010
Investments listed in Hong Kong B LMz HEE
— available-for-sale (note 22) A E (HizE22) 1,200,105 60,005
z Excluding retained profits = T BIEREFH
Capital management BEFEH

The primary objectives of the Group’'s capital
management are to safeqguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2010 and 31 March 20009.

AEFBEAEENERZRE R
RAEEAGHEZRNEN B
HRREMNERNL R UAXFHHEE
BB FRERANRREE-

AEERBEEBEANES E1E
HEAGBAEHARE BT X
HBEANER NEEAIEE AR
RIS - AR K @& 7 g %
THR-BE_ZT—ZEFR_ZFE
NF=ZA=+—BLEFERN L&
REREEENEBF BR%E
o
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31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. U BRI EEEEREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Capital management (continued) BFEHE (&)

AEEANEXRBELREZEARN
BR-BRBELERFRBERNU
BMEARFRBEZM FRERR
FE 8 5 RRAK - E AN BR K - FE&T
ERRENRES BNESR END
ZBCRMT B 2 R1T R A E RN E
NREEN REBeRRSEFE
BH - BARREIRAE - NS
REABELERMT

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus
net debt. Net debt includes trade creditors, sundry
creditors, accruals and deposits received, amounts due
to directors and minority shareholders, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, and finance lease payables
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents total
equity. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

Group XxEMH
2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-ZT§ _—TThF
Bt 5 THET FAT
Trade creditors BB Z RN 31 51,495 38,662
Sundry creditors, accruals and ~ HEMENERER BT ER
deposits received EWERE 196,419 185,106
Due to directors ENES 81,025 60,048
Due to minority shareholders FE D BUAR R 47,089 39,012
Interest-bearing bank and Bt B 2 8R1T R E M E K
other borrowings 32 704,878 723,969
Finance lease payables JET B E FH &Y 33 245 873
Deposits received TE U BR K 5,647 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : & MR FEEIER 30 (113,378) (125,151)
Net debt FEE 973,420 922,519
Total equity NN 3,293,177 2,998,899
Total equity and net debt mRARFEE 4,266,597 3,921,418
Gearing ratio BARBEEE 23% 24%
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49.

50.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 75 3R 25 fff =+

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified
to conform with the current year's presentation.
The directors consider such reclassifications will allow a
more appropriate presentation of the Group's state of
affairs and better reflect the nature of the transactions.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 21 July 2010.

49.

50.

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZEF=F=+—H

4 44 ]

ETHREFEREHDE AT
BARFEEFNITH %%%%E@J
REMOBZIRATAEREMT
AARBZEBREERRBBR
ZHZIMEE e

MEBEREZIAE
BBEHREER_FT-—FTFLA

“t-HRESSHEL REHR
%O
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =&Y 2

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Groupas R-ZE—ZEF=ZA=+—BAKEEFHE

at 31 March 2010 are as follows: WIREMEFHBTOT
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

AERLE EREHR
BB B Lk 30 ®|h (EHXK) O ERER
Hong Kong
g8
Unit B, 26th Floor Medium term 1,568" 100 Completed
Wyler Centre, Phase Il lease

200 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories

AR HHAFE 4 T BI&HK
Kﬁﬁkuoo%ﬁ
BRHALEZ
2612BE
Ground Floor and Cockloft, Medium term C 87# 100 Completed
61 South Wall Road, lease
Kowloon City, Kowloon

BN EE AR AT =l BERK
6155 T & EE
Unit No. G37, Ground Long term C 77* 100 Completed
Floor, Peninsula Centre, lease

67 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon
BADHERIBEME REHELD 5] B &K
mﬂ¢%¢mmT
G375 B L

Tak Sing Alliance Building, Medium term C 780* 100 Completed
1/F-3/F, 15/F-18/F, lease

115 Chatham Road South,

Tsimshatsui Kowloon

NERD RHIME A ] BEK
&mﬁﬁﬂwﬁ

EREENE

11EE3E -

152 £ 1818
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Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group as

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =& E

at 31 March 2010 are as follows: (continued)

Name/location

1.0 L

Tenure

LRAKE

Type

o

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H

R_EBE-—ZEF=ZA=1t—BEXEERFFH
MIREMERFBNT : (8)

Approx.
gross area Effective Stage of
(m?) % held completion
AEROE BEREHR
(EHXK) BO ERER

Hong Kong
gd

15th Floor and

Carparking Space No. 5,
Young Ya Industrial Building,
381-389 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories

R

YD IR 78381-3895%

Ko TEAE
158 &

Y =

Mainland China

E AR

Units 9D-F, 10A-F, 22-C
Man Wah Mansion,
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

ARYNE R R
XERNEAE

9D-F, 10A-F, 22-C

Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

ARYIE s

ARBRBERERERZR
EEHRERES

Medium term
lease

R EIA A

Medium term
lease

R EIA A

Medium term
lease

R EAA 4

CR

B/ fE

2,594+# 100 Completed

1,881# 100 Completed

BEX

28,491* 72 Completed

BEK

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E Ak &
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =&Y 2

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Groupas R-ZE—ZEF=ZA=+—HAKEEFE

at 31 March 2010 are as follows: (continued) WIREMEFBWT : (&)
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

AEROE BEREHR
&R B Lk 30 ®|h (EHXK) BOE ERER
Mainland China
PEXE
A building at Shi Lien Road, Leasehold 3, 322" 100 Completed
Chiu Tien Industrial Park,
Shi Lou Town,

Panyu County,
Guangdong Province

URNERE AFH T BEX
HHRK

RiEH

HE ¥R

MER—EET

A building at Gowtong Leasehold 14,754% 100 Completed
Village, Panyu County,
Guangdong Province

fRERE BEEH T BI&RK
BHR&

RENZBTF

Imperial Palace, Long term C/R 4,899* 80 Completed
Hong Yi Cun, lease

Baoan South Road,

Shenzhen

RN REAHA B/ B354
REZE B

E—

B B B

14 Zu Miao Road, Leasehold C 6,838 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal

A BEH ] [RE359
10 A K 1455
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Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2010 are as follows:

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =& E

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H

R_EBE-—ZEF=ZA=1t—BEXEERFFH
ERYE BERRBZOEFBET

Approx.
gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion
AEROE EREHR
BB B Lk 30 ®|h (EHXK) O ERER
Hong Kong
g8
Unit A, 26th Floor and Leasehold 812* 100 Completed
Carparking Space Nos. 19, 20, 21,
22, 39 and 40 on 2nd Floor and
Lorry Parking Space No. L21
on 1st Floor, Wyler Centre, Phase I,
200 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories
R BEH T BIEMK

NEHEE200 57
Bfap OB B

261 AE M2IEE 195
2057 ~ 215% ~ 2258
39%% 405 B K2
L2198 BERE

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E Ak &
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =&Y 2

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and R-_ZE—ZTF=F=+—HAEEEH
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2010 are as follows: EEME BERREBZMEFBLOT :

(continued) (&)
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

AEROE BERFA
1 V81" AR #|h (EHXK) BSOS TRER
Mainland China
PEXE
Nos. 2-6, 5/F, Leasehold C 1,922# 100 Completed

Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic

Zone

R [ BEH [ BI&K
ARER R

FRE KRR

EBMRERES

A 182-65%

2 Zishan Road, Leasehold C 34,490% 100 Completed
Yiyang Municipal

g [ 0 A L B& 255% BEH ] BI&K

14 Zu Miao Road, Leasehold C 12,954% 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal

AN BEH [ BI&K

16 B B& 1457

Notes: Bt 5

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial YIZERER: I-T¥ R—FE C—E%

# Gross floor area # RIZE EE
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Particulars of the properties held for sales held by the Group

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =& E

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H

R-E-—TF=ZA=+—BEREEHFE

as at 31 March 2010 are as follows: HEMEFBWT -
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

AEROE EREHR
BB B Lk 30 ®|h (EHXK) O ERER
Mainland China
PEXE
Carrianna Friendship Square, Medium term C/R 3,484% 72 Completed
Junction Renmin Road South lease
and Chunfeng Road,
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
AR E R h HiAE 4 B/ fE B&RK
ARBEBRERERZR
EEBRARES
Imperial Palace, Long term lease CR 562# 80 Completed
Hong Yi Cun,
Baoan South Road,
Shenzhen
RN [ RBAMEL B/ B &K
1R % 7 5%
BB B
Residential units and car parks of Long term lease CR 32,052¢ 75 Completed
Grand Lake City,
Yiyang Road, Hunan
Gk N REH A B/ B &K
FELA R M £ KB
Shopping street of Medium term C 10,820* 75 Completed
Grand Lake City, lease
Yiyang Road, Hunan
Gk N  HIFE 4 5] B &R
RS R % 4
Notes: B o -

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial

# Gross floor area

YRR - T R—FEE " C—Ex

# RIBEE S

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #E Ak &

197



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =&Y 2

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZFF=F=+—H

Particulars of the properties under development held by the

R_E-—ZTF=ZA=+—BXEEHEF

Group as at 31 March 2010 are as follows: ERPMEFIBOT
Expected
Site Stage of Effective completion
Location Use area completion % held date
EREHR
it B R& THER 5E R P& BX B WiESEH
(m?)
(F5%)
Mainland China
PEXE
Chaoyang Road to the north, Commercial/ 29,997 Foundation work 75 N/A
Zishanhu to the south, Yiyang residential in progress
2 5 T 9 B B DA R R LA AL CEYAEEe WETRETH
Zishancun Reservoir to the east, Commercial/ 103,584 Foundation work 75 N/A
Yiyang Road to the north, Yiyang residential in progress
g [ T 9 Lt 7 2B 7 HE/EE METRETH
w5 A E Rl
Tuanyuan Road to the east, Yiyang Commercial/ 318,709 Land bank 75 N/A
residential
7 5 T [ B % 7 1 mE/Ex TR
Yangwuling Village, Lucigiao Village, Commercial/ 120,040 Land bank 75 N/A
Yiyang residential
w5 I BB AR A HE/ME T
Xin Guang Road to the East B section ~ Commercial/ 105,916 Foundation work 72 N/A
residential in progress
FMERGREERRICE HE/EE ETRETH
RAABREB B
Xin Guang Road to the East F section ~ Commercial/ 77,757 Land bank 72 N/A
residential
B 3% R IR B AR R R TR HME/EE Tl

RARBBEFR
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =& E

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=F=+—H

Particulars of the properties under development held by the R-_ZE—ZTF=F=+—HAEEBEEH

Group as at 31 March 2010 are as follows: (continued) BRPYESBOT: (&)
Expected
Site Stage of Effective completion
Location Use area completion % held date
EREHR
it B R& TiEE e R B X B WiESEH
(m?)
(F5K)

Xin Guang Road to the East C section ~ Commercial/ 130,846 Land bank 72 N/A
residential

B 3% [ IR 7B 2R SR [ AT R R mE/Ex TR

RABEECR

Xin Guang Road to the East E section ~ Commercial/ 93,643 Land bank 72 N/A
residential

B3 R IR B B R B AT LR mE/EE T

RABBEER

Xin Guang Road to the East G section ~ Commercial/ 122,577 Land bank 72 N/A
residential

MERGBERBILE HE/x T

RABREGR

Xin Guang Road to the East H section ~ Commercial/ 83,618 Land bank 72 N/A
residential

FMERREERRI R HE/Ex T

RABREHR
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING REERBAFE A2 ®mE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General
Meeting of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) will be held at Carrianna (Chiu Chow)
Restaurant, 1st Floor, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Monday, 30 August 2010 at 11:00 a.m. for the
following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial
Statements and the Reports of the Directors and of the
Auditors for the year ended 31 March 2010.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2010.

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix Directors’ remuneration.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix their remuneration.

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass
with or without amendments, the following resolutions
as an Ordinary Resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
A. "THAT

(@) Subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to
purchase issued shares of HK$0.10 each in
the capital of the Company, subject to and
in accordance with the applicable laws and
the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited as amended from
time to time be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to
be purchased pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the date
of this Resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and
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B.

(c)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PR BFEA 2 @S

for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
passing of this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company;

(i) the revocation or variation of the
authority given under this Resolution by
Ordinary Resolution of the shareholders
in general meeting; and

(iii) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to
be held."”.

“THAT

(a)

subject to sub-paragraph (c) of this
Resolution, the exercise by the Directors
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue or otherwise deal with additional
shares of the Company and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options which
might require the exercise of such powers be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in sub-paragraph (a) of this
Resolution shall authorise the Directors during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of
the Relevant Period;

(@

BRARBRMS  [H R
HIR | TR ARZERB
B2 BENIMEA — AR
BEAEZ A2 HIME:

(i) ANRRTEBRBF
KGR

(i) NRBREHDZEN
RAEBCRERRKRE
BREBRERTIA
BEHHERT 2B &

(DI YNEIA/NS =
BREEEEARA
RIZARITTERRA
FREHREERZ
Holo

[ & -
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING REERBAFE A2 ®mE

(c)

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in sub-
paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise
than pursuant to:

(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined);

(i) the exercise of any option scheme or
similar arrangement for the time being
adopted for the grant or issue to officers
and/or employees of the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries of shares or
rights to acquire shares of the Company;
and

(iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares in
lieu of the whole or part of a dividend
on shares of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company;

shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of the passing
of this Resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing of
this Resolution until whichever is the earlier
of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company;

(i) the revocation or variation of the
authority given under this Resolution by
Ordinary Resolution of the shareholders
in general meeting; and
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PR BFEA 2 @S

(iii) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to
be held.”;

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in
the Company open for a period fixed by the
Directors to holders of shares of the Company
whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record
date in proportion to their then holdings of
such shares (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regards to
any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of any recognised
body or any stock exchange, in any territory
outside Hong Kong).".

(i) ARBZREABAIEK
BREZXMRER
NRBABIT T ER
RBFREzHRE
el

[EEEFIR| FHFESTNIETE
HARI A M 48 € AC 8% B H
A5 R R B CR % i 2 Bk
DREARZREFER
Z R B L I B 3%~ AT
R (EEEHER
TSR E AR RE
P 2 R [ 2 VAR BT
MR ZEEREIIM
EHRX B2 RESAIE
MR SBAKEEIES
TR J7 2 #ER 3K
EHEAMZHE) o

C. "THAT conditional upon the passing of the
Ordinary Resolutions no. 5A and 5B set out above,
the general mandate granted to the Directors
pursuant to resolution no. 5B be and is hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted in resolution no. 5A,
provided that such amount shall not exceed 10%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue at the date of the
passing of this Resolution.”.

6. To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited

Ng Yan Kwong
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 29 July 2010
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Notes:

ANNU

The Register of Members will be closed from Wednesday, 25 August
2010 to Monday, 30 August 2010 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his/her behalf. A
proxy need not be a Member of the Company. If more than one proxy
is so appointed, the appointment shall specify the number and class
of shares in respect of which each such proxy is so appointed.

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified
copy of such power of attorney or authority, must be lodged with the
Company'’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/
F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

An explanatory statement containing further details regarding
Resolution No. 5 above will be sent to shareholders shortly together
with the 2010 annual report.
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